
1 
 

 
 

 
NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

 
TO BE HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, DAME STREET, DUBLIN 2., 

 
ON WEDNESDAY, 16 NOVEMBER 2016 AT 3.00 PM 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

WEDNESDAY, 16 NOVEMBER 2016 
 

  PAGE 
 
1   Minutes of Meeting held on the 19th of October   

 
1 - 8 

2   Questions to Area Manager   
 

9 - 28 

3   Roads and Traffic Matters 
(i)    Minutes of Traffic Advisory Group held on the 25th October 2016   
       in relation to Traffic  Matters in the South Central Area, (report   
        attached). 
(ii)   Traffic Service Requests, Status Report at 15th October 2016,  
        (report attached). 

 

29 - 54 

4   South Central Area Matters 
(i)  Report recommending the adoption of a pilot scheme for Choice     

         Based  
                    Lettings in Tyrone Place (Inchicore), Bernard Curtis House, Bluebell     
                    Road and Huband Road (Bluebell), (report attached). 

(ii)  
Proposal to extinguish the Public Right of Way over a stretch of     

         roadway at Borris Court, Dublin 8, (report attached). 
(iii)  Report on Halloween clean up in the South Central Area, (report     

          attached).  
           (iv)    Schedule of Lighting of Christmas Trees in the South Central Area,   
                    (report attached). 
           (v)     Gully Cleaning Programme report for the South Central Area, (report  
                    attached). 
           (vi)    Area Manager’s Report. 
 

55 - 68 

5   Community, Culture, Economic and Emergency Services 
(i) Public Library Events for November 2016 – South Central Area,            
         (report attached). 
(ii) Sport and Recreation Report for November 2016 – South Central   

Area,  (report attached). 

69 - 78 



2 
 

 
6   Planning and Economic Development Matters 

     (i)    Derelict Sites Quarterly Report, (report attached). 
 

79 - 86 

7   Emergency Motions   
 

 

8   Deferred Motions from the October Area Committee Meeting 
 
447 Councillor Michael Mullooly’s Deferred Motion 

This Area Committee calls on the Area Manager or a delegated member of 
his staff to visit and report to this Committee on the potential for 
improvement, maintenance, condition of Poddle Park (the green area 
across from the KCR along the Poddle River). This little park has 
significant potential but it is poorly maintained and because of this attracts 
illegal dumping and anti-social activity. 

 

 

9   November  Motions 
 
459  Councillor Tina Mac Veigh 

This Area Committee agrees that, in preparation for the Ceannt Fort 
Estate Centenary Celebrations in 2017, a schedule of works will be carried 
out as follows: Entrance wall pointing, signage, lamp post, railing and 
footpath painting and renovation, marking out car parking spaces in upper 
and lower car parks; public drainage; regular maintenance of public 
spaces (inc new playground area); street signage. The Area Office will 
meet representatives of the Ceannt Fort Residents Association to discuss 
the above renovations and in addition to provide them with guidance on 
entrance signage that incorporates direction within the estate and short 
bilingual history.  

 
460  Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

That this Area Committee views with concern the manner in which Nicolas 
and Myra Carmen's Hall Community Centre was converted into a 
homeless hostel. 
 

461    Councillor Paul Hand 
That this Area Committee supports the full and complete restoration of the 
Christmas Night Luas on the Red line and requests that Luas 
management take steps to ensure the same service is provided on the 
Red Line and the Green Line this Christmas. To this end we request that 
this motion be forwarded to Luas management for consideration. 

 

 

10   November Questions to Area Manager   
 

87 - 92 

 



  MINUTES OF S0UTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 19th OCTOBER 2016  

ORDUITHE A DEINEADH AN COISTE CHEANTAR AN LARDHEISCIRT 
19 DEIREADH FÓMHAIR 2016 

 
 
432. Minutes of Meeting held on 21st September 2016  
            Order: Agreed.    
 
433. Questions to Dublin Chief Executive 

 Replies to Questions and the Area Manager’s report circulated. 
  
434. Roads & Traffic Matters 
 (i)    Minutes of Traffic Advisory Group held on the 27th September 2016   

       in relation to Traffic  Matters in the South Central Area. 
(ii)   Traffic Service Requests, Status Report at 19th October 2016.  
Order:   (i)    Noted. 

                          (ii)   Noted. 
 
435.  South Central Area 
 (i)    Update on Proposed Project Monitoring Committee for National Children’s  
                   Hospital and recommendations on Dublin City Council participation.  

 (ii)   Nomination of three Councillors to join the Kilmainham Inchicore Network. 
     (iii)  Report on the National Cultural Institutions and Neighbourhoods.  

            (iv)  Report on Community Initiatives for the Halloween period.  
            (v)   Report on Public Domain initiatives for the Halloween period  
           (vi)   Gully Cleaning Programme report for the South Central Area 
           (vii)  Area Manager’s Report. 
Matters arising:- Standing Orders were suspended for 10 minutes in order for the 
Members agree nominations to Item 435 (i) and (ii). 

   Order:   (i)   The Members agreed the following nominations: -    
   Councillors Críona Ni Dhálaigh, Pat Dunne and Rebecca  
                        Moynihan.  
       (ii)   The Members agreed the following nominations: -    
   Councillors Vincent Jackson, Paul Hand and Greg Kelly.            
                (iii)   Report noted. 

  (iv)   Report noted. 
   (v)   Report noted. 

     (vi)  Report noted. 
     (vii) The Area Manager’s report was noted by the Members: - 

Area Manager’s Report 
South Central Area Committee 
Wednesday 19th October 2016 

 
DUBLIN SOUTH CENTRAL JPC MEETING  
A reminder that the Dublin South Central JPC Meeting is scheduled for next Monday the 24th 
October in the Council Chamber, City Hall, at 2.30pm. 
 
Visit to Cherry Orchard Equine Centre for Councillors 
The Manager of the Equine Centre recently gave a presentation to the Area JPC Parks 
Health and Safety Sub Committee. During the presentation the Manager invited Councillors 
to visit the centre. The Councillors present at the meeting agreed that such a visit would be a 
worthwhile exercise. It is now proposed to arrange a site visit to the equine centre for 

Page 1



Councillors. The visit will take place on Friday 11th November at 11am subject to the 
agreement of the Area Committee. 
 
SOUTH WEST INNER CITY AREA OFFICE REPORT 
 
New Public Park, Cork Street 
A Part VIII Planning Application for a 0.6 hectare neighbourhood park on the site of the 
demolished Chamber Court and Weavers Court flats on Cork Street was agreed at the 
December 2015 City Council meeting. Enabling works (including archaeological 
investigations) were completed in July. Tenders for the main park works have been invited 
and will be evaluated next month. It is expected that the park will be completed by summer 
2017. 
 
Dolphins Barn 
Works to create a pop-up linear park in the area between the new boundary wall to the rear 
of the houses at St. James Terrace and the public footpath was completed in September. 
The cost of these works is provided for in the South Central Area Discretionary Fund 2016. A 
consultant has been appointed to prepare a Public Realm Improvement Plan for Dolphins 
Barn. The cost associated with the plan is also provided for in the Discretionary Fund. It is 
expected that community workshop(s) will be held next month. 
 
Crane Street/Sugar House Lane 
It is planned to enhance pedestrian access along this important and busy tourist route. The 
works include the widening of the existing footpaths and the narrowing of the carriageway. 
Following agreement at the June Area Committee meeting a Part 8 planning application for 
the project was advertised on 22nd June. A report in relation to the Part 8 planning 
application will be prepared for the November City Council meeting. If the application is 
agreed construction is likely to commence early next year with a works period of 3 to 4 
months. 
  
Newmarket 
A Public Realm Improvement Plan for Newmarket Square and its environs is substantially 
complete. The Plan describes, supports and guides the implementation of improvements to 
enhance the use and attractiveness of the area. A report in relation to the plan was 
presented at July’s Area Committee meeting whilst it is expected that agreement will be 
requested at next month’s meeting to initiate the Part 8 planning process. 
 
Francis Street and Meath Street 
South Central Area Office is working to enhance these commercial streets with a programme 
of pavement repair, greening initiatives and enhanced cycle parking. A number of 
businesses have also expressed interest in taking part in the Shopfront Improvement 
Scheme.  The Council’s initiatives support the wide number of small businesses active on 
these streets.  
 
Pimlico 
The upgrade of the open space at Pimlico was substantially completed in September. The 
works included the removal of the concrete pillars, new lighting and the relaying of the 
footpath. 
 
High Street 
As part of the Liberties Greening Strategy a series of planters were installed in High Street 
on 16th September. Further planters are due to be located here at the end of October. 
 
 
 

Page 2



Thomas Abbey, South Earl Street  
Works to create a new allotment site at South Earl Street, Dublin 8 are now complete. The 
site, known as Thomas Abbey or Meath Market, has its entrance between nos.12A and 13 
South Earl Street.  The site is designated as a National Monument and, in order to protect 
any underground archaeology, the surface area has been covered with a geotextile layer. 
 
The site includes 12 x 30 sq. m allotment plots and 5 smaller beds. It should be noted that all 
allotment plots will be constructed as raised beds and that the existing surface will not be 
disturbed. The project will also include a compost storage area, water butts, timber benches 
and a storage shed. 
 
Re-roofing Programme  
The renewal of the roofs in Thomas Court Bawn, School Street, Marrowbone Lane Flats, 
Meath Place, Braithwaite Street and South Summer Street has been completed. Works to 
the roof lights, chimneys and tank houses were included.  
 
Similar remedial work to the roof in Pimlico Terrace commenced on 18th July and is due to 
finish this month. This will complete the programme. 
 
Oliver Bond House 
The upgrade of both playgrounds and the football pitch in Oliver Bond House commenced 
last month and is due to be completed on 14th October. The cost of these works is provided 
for in the South Central Area Discretionary Fund 2016. 
 
Ceannt Fort, Mount Brown 
Following a series of meetings agreement has been reached with local residents for the 
refurbishment of the play area at Ceannt Fort. It is expected that this work will be carried out 
later this year. 
 
Thomas Street Renewal 
A programme of repaving work on the south side of Thomas Street will be completed by the 
end of October, meaning that the planned scope of work envisaged under the Thomas 
Street-James Street QBC programme will be largely completed.  Outstanding elements 
include new heritage-style street lighting on Thomas Street and James Street and additional 
planters at locations along Thomas Street, both of which will be installed by year end. The 
completed work will represent an approx. €4m investment by Dublin City Council on this 
route. 
 
Private Sector Investment: Shopfront Improvements 
Dublin City Council’s Shopfront Improvement Scheme 2016 has supported 16 no. projects in 
the main commercial streets of The Liberties this year. The scheme has encouraged building 
renewal, shopfront improvements and good practice signage and advertising.  The Area 
Office has made grants to the value of c. €35,000 in 2016 supporting an estimated overall 
spend of c. €120,000 by private sector partners. 
The most high-profile refurbishment on Thomas Street to date has been the restored Arch of 
Chadwick’s Builders Providers, which was supported by both the Council’s Shopfront 
Improvement Scheme (in 2015) and the Built Heritage Investment Fund. Work has also 
recently begun on two major refurbishment of office property on Thomas Street: 10-13 
Cornmarket, which is being refurbished by HSE for its own use, and 138-140 Thomas Street 
(Emmet House) which is being remodelled and refurbished for landmark office use. 
 
 
 
 
CRUMLIN  AREA OFFICE REPORT 

Page 3



 
New Children’s Playground – Stannaway Park 
A new children’s play area in Stannaway Park is intended to be created.  The play area will 
cater for young children aged between 2 and 7 years of age and it is expected that the works 
will be carried out and completed before the end of 2016. 
 
This small play area will be natural in style to blend in with the grassland of the existing park.  
Play features will be constructed of natural materials and will be set into the landscape within 
gentle mounded forms.  Seating will be provided as part of the works. 
 
Improvement works at Cashel Avenue and Captains Avenue 
Improvement works at Cashel Avenue and Captains Avenue, consisting of new parking 
zones, new footpaths and a plinth wall surrounding the green, have gone to tender.  Works 
should commence in November 2016 with a completion date of December 2016.  These 
works will be funded from the South Central Area Discretionary Fund 2016.  
 
Brickfield Park 
Works have begun on the all weather pitch in Brickfield Park involving erecting a temporary 
fencing, establishing an access road and stripping the soil at Brickfield Park.  Whilst 
construction works at this time of year are very much weather dependent, it is expected that 
the project will be completed by March 2017. 
 
Young at Heart Dance: 
The annual Young at Heart Dance for the senior citizens of Dublin 12 takes place on 
Tuesday 25th October at 8pm in the Transport Club on Clogher Road. It promises to be a 
great night with music provided by the Garda Band.  
 
Cycle Stands  
Cycle stands are currently being installed at a number of locations in Crumlin Village.  
 
 
BALLYFERMOT AREA OFFICE REPORT 
 
LECP Consultation 
Dublin City Council and the Ballyfermot/Chapelizod Partnership have completed work on the 
LECP Consultation. Information received will inform the local and city SICAP plan for 2017. 
 
Halloween Activities 

 A Halloween Safety Programme to approx 200 primary school children, Ballyfermot 
Community Civic Centre on Wednesday 19th October 2016 from 9.30am to 1.00pm 
With Gardai, Dublin Bus and Fire Brigade. 

 The Cherry Orchard Equine and Educational Training Centre are hosting a 
Halloween Grotto and fun day on Monday 31st October 2016. 

 The Orchard Community Centre and the community are holding their annual 
Costume disco and Fireworks Display on Halloween from 4.00pm to 6.00pm.  

 D10 Autistic Spectrum Disorder Support Group will have their Haunted Walk in 
Marley Park on Sunday 30th October 2016. 

 
Ballyfermot Dementia Choir 
Funding has been secured for the formation of a Choir in the Ballyfermot/Chapelizod area 
that supports persons with Dementia and their carers. There has been great interest from 
both areas and meetings are currently being held to secure practice areas, transport and a 
choral director with experience in this type of Choir. 
 

Page 4



SCA Network Groups 
Meetings have been held for South Central Area Mens Network and Environmental Groups 
Network. It is envisaged that these groups will share knowledge and experiences, support 
each other, advocate for resources and projects across the area and seek to address issues 
affecting the South Central area.  
 
Other Projects 
The Community & Social Development Team continue to support all community & voluntary 
groups in the Ballyfermot, Chapelizod and Cherry Orchard Areas. We also provide 
information on funding and other activities on a weekly basis in the area. Over the rest of the 
summer we are continuing to provide play days, summer project supports, environmental 
cleanups and other assistance to groups and individuals in the area. 
 
 
       
 
436.  Community, Culture, Economic and Emergency Services 
 (i)    Public Library Events for October 2016 – South Central Area. 
 (ii)   Sport and Recreation Report for October 2016 – South Central Area. 

 Order:   (i)    Noted. 
                          (ii)    Noted. 
  
437.      Housing and Residential Services 
             (i)   Dublin City Council Social Housing Delivery Report 3rd October 2016 
            (ii)   Housing Voids Report for South Central Area. 

 Order:   (i)    Noted.  
                          (ii)    Noted. 

Councillors expressed anger and disappointment at the 
continuing refusal of Housing Department Officials, responsible 
for compiling the Reports, to attend the Area Committee and 
clarify questions arising. Councillors consider this unacceptable 
and requested that the Area Manager write in the strongest 
possible terms to the Deputy Chief Executive expressing their 
views and requesting that relevant officials from the Housing 
Department in Wood Quay attend the Area Committee quarterly to 
handle questions pertaining to the Reports. Councillors also 
agreed to have the matter raised at Protocol. In addition 
Councillors will send their specific questions pertaining to the 
Housing Reports to the Area Office and the Area Office will 
forward same to the Housing Department requesting replies and 
circulate replies to all Councillors on the Area Committee. 

 
 
DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL 

SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE  
19th October 2016 

 
October Motions 
 
438  Councillor Ray McHugh 

This Area Committee agree that the Area Manager should write to the Board of 
Dunnes Stores to seek an urgent meeting with the board, to discuss the boards plan 
for the site on the Crumlin Road. 
Order: Agreed. 
 

Page 5



 
439 Councillor Michael Mullooly 

This Area Committee condemns the mode and manner in which residents of the 
Kilmainham /South Circular Road were notified that the extensive road works from 
the junction of Brookfield Road to the Junction of R111. 
Order: Agreed. 

 
440 Councillor Paul Hand 

That this Area Committee condemns the recent actions of Bank of Ireland in closing 
down the bank account of the Ireland Palestine Solidarity Campaign. It is disgraceful 
that a bank that has received billions in state aid would close down a registered not 
for profit company that is promoting human rights at home and abroad. Furthermore, 
this area committee requests that we write to the CEO of Bank of Ireland with the 
contents of this motion outlining our opposition to the actions they have taken. 
Order: Agreed. 

 
441 Councillor Ray McHugh 

This Area Committee agrees to call on the Minister of Transport, The Carraige office 
and Dublin City Council, to urgently address the non control of Rickshaws in our City. 
Order: Agreed. 

 
442 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

That Dublin City Council bring forward a compherensive Traffic Management Plan for 
Ballyfermot Road. The current volumes of traffic using this road is not sustainable & 
recent erection of traffic lights by Dublin City Council outside the Ballyfermot Primary 
Centre coupled with very poor time signals have all added to a very poor situation. 
Ballyfermot is being chocked to death by traffic. An air quality report is also needed 
here as we have to live with the effects of traffic seven days a week. 
Order: Report to all Councillors. 

 
443 Councillor Greg Kelly 

This Area Committee recognises the great work done by WALK in Dublin 8 and 12 
and commends them for doing so with a reduced budget in 2016. The Councillors are 
now asking the Area Manager to commit to not only keeping the funding for WALK by 
the area office but to increase it back to original funding of €40,000. The removal of 
funding will result in a loss of services in the area and also the loss of 2 jobs. 
Order: Agreed. 

 
444 Councillor Daithi Doolan 

To ensure the community has a peaceful and safe Halloween season this Area 
Committee asks that every resource necessary, both financial & personnel, is made 
available to Dublin City Council and to Gardaí in Dublin South Central.  
Order: Agreed. 

 
445 Councillor Criona Ni Dhalaigh 

That this Area Committee commend the environmental improvements at the 
Dolphin's Barn linear park and the positive impact this has had on the area. We call 
on the Area Manager to continue to improve the area but in particular the area from 
the junction at Dolphins Barn traffic lights down to SCR/St Anthony's Rd junction. 
This was to take place as soon as the 1st village improvement plan was finished 
(from the round about to the Church) but so far no works have taken place. 
Order: Agreed. 
 
 

446 Councillor Hazel de Nortuin 

Page 6



This Area Committee agrees that the playground in Convent lawns be removed by 
Dublin City Council and replaced as a community garden for the residents of Convent 
Lawns. With the refurbishment of the community centre, it will ensure that the 
resident's will have a use of both the Community Centre and adjoining green area. 
Order: Agreed. 

 
447 Councillor Michael Mullooly 

This Area Committee calls on the Area Manager or a delegated member of his staff 
to visit and report to this Committee on the potential for improvement, maintenance, 
condition of Poddle Park (the green area across from the KCR along the Poddle 
River). This little park has significant potential but it is poorly maintained and because 
of this attracts illegal dumping and anti-social activity. 
Order: Deferred to the November meeting. 

 
448 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To arrange with Tag the possible changing of the parking zone on Brookfield Rd 
Kilmainham  from a low demand  zone 4 orange, to a high demand zone 1 yellow, 
because of cheap parking in this zone. Residents are being squeezed for parking 
since the commencement of work for the new Children's Hospital. 
Order: Agreed. 

 
449 Councillor Greg Kelly 

This Area Committee recognises the vital amenity that St John Bosco youth centre is 
to Drimnagh. The services and facilities that St John Bosco offer the community can 
only be provided by various grants that the centre receives. While the grants that are 
available provide programmes and staff they do not contribute to the up keep of the 
build. This Area Committee is now asking for DCC to provide St John Bosco with a 
capital grant, which has been provided before to the centre, to cover the costs of 
repairs to the centre. Without the St John Bosco youth centre DCC would have to 
provide there own building in Drimnagh to cover the services that is offered so as a 
result the grant would be a cheaper option that having our own building. 
Order: Agreed. 

 
450 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

Can the Area Committee please impress upon the Homeless Section of DCC to 
ensure that all emergency hostel providers etc allow those residents the dignity of 
staying in the facility for the days they are resident .The practice of turning out 
vulnerable people onto the streets of Dublin doesn’t assist in there long term 
progression into stable accommodation. 
Order: Refer to the Housing SPC. 

 
451 Councillor Paul Hand 

That this Area Committee supports the construction and provision of :- Welcome to 
Drimnagh signs and for these signs to be erected as soon as possible. 
Order: Agreed. 

 
452 Councillor Ray McHugh 

This Area Committee agrees to write to Irish water for an update report on the Vartry 
Tunnel Project, which supplies drinking water to around 25% of Dublin and is in a 
state of collapse and is in urgent need of replacing. 
Order: Agreed. 
 

Councillor Paul Hand 
Chairperson  
25th October 2016 

Page 7



 
 
 
Attendance 
 
Councillors 
Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh, Councillor Daithí Doolan, Councillor Pat Dunne, Councillor 
Paul Hand,  Councillor Vincent Jackson, Councillor Greg Kelly,  Councillor Ray McHugh, 
Councillor Tina MacVeigh, Councillor Rebecca Moynihan, Councillor Hazel de Nortúin and 
Councillor Michael Mullooly, Councillor Daithí De Róiste. 
 
Others 
Councillor Mannix Flynn 
 
Officials 
Peter Finnegan, Area Manager, South Central Area 
Stephen Shiels, Area Housing Manager, Ballyfermot Area Office; 
Pat Teehan Community & Social development Officer, Ballyfermot Area Office; 
David Healy, Administrative Officer, South Central Area;  
Adrian Dowling, Assistant Engineer, Traffic Management & Control; 
Helen Smirnova, Senior Executive Engineer, Traffic Management & Control; 
Sean Redmond, Executive Parks Superintendent, Parks Department; 
Karen Clarke, Staff Officer, South Central Office; 
Martha Mahon, Assistant Staff Officer, South Central Office. 

 
 

 

Page 8



DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL 
SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

19th October 2016 
 

Q1 Councillor Ray McHugh 
To ask the Area Manager to arrange for an inspection to the wall at the rear of 
(details supplied) this lady is an 84 year old living alone and is worried about the 
weeds growing on the wall which she informs me is Dublin City Council property. 
 
Reply 
A report will issue to the Councillor within two weeks. 

 
Contact: Frank D’Arcy, Housing Maintenance Section 
Phone: 222 3617 
Email: bernie.reilly@dubllincity.ie 
 

Q2 Councillor Rebecca Moynihan 
To ask the Area Manager to (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q3 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To ask the Area Manager to arrange for the Black and Amber Public House, Island 
Bridge, to be placed on the Derelict Building register. 

 
Reply 
This site was inspected by the Derelict Sites Section on 7th October, 2016 and it is 
not considered to be a derelict site within the meaning of Section 3 of the Derelict 
Sites Act, 1990. 

   
Contact: Nial Dully, Administrative Officer, Planning and Property Development 
Department 

 Tel: 222 3941 
Email: nial.dully@dublincity.ie 

 
Q4 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

To ask the Area Manager can  notices advising members of the public, that the area 
is monitored by CCTV cameras be erected at the entrance to the Ceannt Fort estate 
in Kilmainham, Mount Brown, so as to mitigate increasing use of the estate by people 
wishing to consume drugs and alcohol? As it happens, the entrances are covered by 
the CCTV cameras of the De Paul hostel at 1 Mount Brown. 

 
Reply 
Dublin City Council does not have CCTV cameras in Ceannt Fort and, as such, is not 
in a position to erect signage.  Perhaps the De Paul hostel, who have the cameras, 
could erect signage. 
 
Contact:  Gerry O’Donoghue, Area Housing Manager, South Central Area 
Tel:  222 5118 
Email:  gerry.odonoghue@dublincity.ie 

 
Q5 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

To ask the Area Manager  if Dublin City Council is in a position to provide equipment 
and training to the residents of Ceannt Fort who are increasingly finding needles on 

Page 9



their public green spaces and wish to dispose of them safely so as to limit risk to 
public health and safety, particularly to that of children in the community. 
 
Reply 
Waste Management Services like all other City Council departments give top priority 
to removing reported syringes and needles from areas which comes under their 
remit. All relevant staff are trained to deal safely with these situations.  We would not 
be in favour in involving the public in this potentially dangerous task for health and 
safety and insurance issues which could arise. 
 
Contact: Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services. 
Tel: 2224240 
Email: mick.boyle@dublincity.ie 
 

Q6 Councillor Hazel de Nortuin 
To ask the Area Manager to have the Waste Department install bins as follows: 
Residents have been complaining about the lack of bins from Suir Bridge along the 
canal from the Blackhorse right up to Dolphins Barn. There doesn't seem to be one 
bin along that busy route. Especially with dog walkers using this route and having to 
carry their dogs 'matter' around, can the waste department install some bins here? 

 
Reply 
Requests for bins along the canal walkways is a matter for Waterways Ireland. Waste 
Management Services have litter bins along the roads in this area. The following are 
the contact details for Waterways Ireland:- 
 
Tel: +44 (0)28 6632 3004 
Web: www.waterwaysireland.org 
Postal address: 2 Sligo Road, Enniskillen, Co. Fermanagh. BT74 7JY 

 
Contact: Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services 
Tel: 222 4240 
Email: mick.boyle@dublincity.ie 

 
Q7 Councillor Hazel de Nortuin 

To ask the Area Manager could I have an update on 'The Pitch' on Bulfin Road? 
Waterways Ireland were using this site to carry out some works. When they were 
finished, they said they would leave it as a park for residents. A plan had been 
agreed with management on this but was never implemented.  

 
Reply 
Planning permission was granted in December 2015 (conditions later amended by an 
Bord Pleanála) for the establishment of temporary compounds and other works 
associated with Liffey Siphon Rehabilitation Contract at 6 locations including 'the 
pitich' at Devoy Road. I have no information in relation to the timeframe for the works 
which have not yet commenced. I can confirm that the permission includes 
reinstatement landscaping works at Devoy Road. 

  
Contact: Brian Lyons, Senior Staff Officer, South Central Area 

  Tel: 222 5245 
Email: brian.lyons@dublincity.ie 

 
Q8 Councillor Hazel de Nortuin 

To ask the Area Manager for the figures on the waiting list for Housing Maintenance 
to be carried out in the Ballyfermot/Drimnagh ward. 

Page 10



Reply 
A report will issue to the Councillor within two weeks. 
 
Contact: Frank D’Arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Tel:  222 3617 
Email: bernie.reilly@dubllincity.ie 

 
Q9 Councillor Hazel de Nortuin 

To ask the Area Manager what is the time scale between road sweeping's being 
carried out in Ballyfermot/Drimnagh ward? Can these be increased as there seems to 
be complaints across the ward of litter building up? 

 
Reply 
The main roads and shop fronts in the Ballyfermot/Drimnagh ward are cleaned on a 
daily basis. The residential areas in this ward are cleaned on a twelve week cycle. 
This area is monitored on a regular basis and extreme cases of littering are dealt with 
between scheduled cleanings. In addition dumped rubbish is removed from this area 
when necessary. There are no plans to increase the frequency of street sweeping in 
this ward at this time but every effort will be made to keep this area as clean as 
possible. 
 
Contact: Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services 
Tel: 222 4240 
Email: mick.boyle@dublincity.ie 

 
Q10 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To ask the Area Manager to request that St. Agnes Centre for Music and Arts be 
included in the series of projects that are being organised throughout the South 
Central area as part of the 2020 European Capital of Cultural Connect Programme. 
St. Agnes centre is voluntary community based and would be an ideal partner for the 
project. 

 
Reply 
The two National Cultural Institutions working in the South Central Area as part of the 
National Neighbourhood are: The Chester Beatty Library (CBL) and the National 
Concert hall (NCH). Given the CBL history and mission and its connection to the 
Middle East, it was always hoped that they would work with the Muslin Community 
and this is now occurring. The NCH have been very involved with St. Agnes Centre 
and indeed were part of the foundation of its Orchestra and therefore on this round of 
projects they wished to work with new groups in the area. 
 
The Community groups selected and working together with both NCI’s are: 
Theatre Group Ballyfermot. 
Traveller Group Ladbroke Park  
Out of the Blue Theatre Group Ballyfermot 
Bosco Youth Group Drimnagh  
Philipino Community Club 
Islamic Foundation of Ireland  
 Arts and Craft Group at F2 Rialto 
 
There is however an emerging musical component of one project and there is a 
possibility for St. Agnes to become involved and that will be explored.  It is important 
to note that this is the first round of projects like this and other community groups will 
be considered and involved over time. 
 

Page 11



Contact: Ray Yeates, City Arts Officer, Community, Culture, Economic and 
Emergency Services Department 
Tel: 222 7849 
Email: ray.yeates@dublincity.ie 
 

Q11 Councillor Criona Ni Dhalaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to consider the request from local residents of (details 
supplied) to have CCTV installed in the estate to try and address the anti 
social/criminal behaviour in the area. Can the Area Manager, if the Council are not in 
a position to fund it, request funding from the Department to cover the cost of it. 
 
Reply 
Incidents of criminal/anti social behaviour should be reported to the Gardaí who are 
the policing authority. CCTV has been installed in Dublin City Council flat complexes 
but, as the vast majority of the houses in (details supplied) are privately owned, 
security measures in this area are an operational matter for the Gardaí. 

  
Contact: Brian Lyons, South Central Area Office 
Tel: 222 5245 
Email: brian.lyons@dublincity.ie 
 

Q12 Councillor Criona Ni Dhalaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to report on the following (details supplied)? 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q13 Councillor Criona Ni Dhalaigh 

To ask the Area Manager if consideration can be given to (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q14 Councillor Criona Ni Dhalaigh 

To ask the Area Manager if he can follow up on this request which I have been 
raising for years now (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q15 Councillor Criona Ni Dhalaigh 

To ask the Area Manager to report on the following (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q16 Councillor Criona Ni Dhalaigh 

To ask the Area Manager what progress has been made regarding (details    
supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q17 Councillor Criona Ni Dhalaigh 

Page 12

mailto:ray.yeates@dublincity.ie


To ask the Area Manager to report on the following in the Dublin South Central area 
(details supplied). 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q18 Councillor Daithi Doolan 

To ask if the Area Manager will support John Bosco’s Youth Centre in accessing 
funding to cover the cost of the essential maintenance. Full details below. The 
quotation cost, including VAT, and list of works are as follows:  

  
· Upgrade 2 gas boilers to condensers:  €4,800 
· Emergency Lighting System replacement to IS3217:  €9,998 
· Replace Gym hall flooring (due to age/wear and tear) with gerflor wood strip   

flooring +prep ie fiberbond screed and primers 210 sq mts stuck all 
over:  €12,172   

· Gym Hall Storage Rooms – repair and resurface flat roofs and attach 
adequate gutters and downpipes. (Internal) Treat dampness and re-plaster 
roofs and walls where required:  €5,675 

· Gym Hall Roof – Replace inadequate guttering along the full length of the 
roof and install downpipe system away from valley:  €2,838 

· Gym Hall – Replace double doors and frame: €3,405 
· DYCE Youth Café – Replace water damaged plasterboard ceilings and 

paint – repair leaks from velux windows and repair and paint ceilings: 
€1,703 

· DYCE Youth Café – Remove old full length urinal – retile wall and floor – 
install and plum two wall mounted individual urinals – repair leak in toilet 
cubicle and replace wood encasing around pipes:  €2,270 

· Kitchen – remove old wooden floor and ceramic tiling – install plywood 
sheets where required and level all floor areas and install suitable non slip 
tiling:  €2,270 

· Sports Hall – replace 2 sets of external security doors and frames with more 
secure anchoring than existing doors:  €6,810 

· Sports Hall – repair and recover wall crack:  €284 
· Reception Area Roof – Resurface area above reception ensuring that there 

is an adequate fall to remove all surface water and replace where 
necessary guttering and downpipes:  €5,108 

· Entrance Area – Repair broken concrete at drain-cover and repair sunken 
cobble-locking:  €851 

· Back Lane Emergency Exit Route – Replace broken concrete pathway 
ensuring that the existing levels are maintained and that channels for 
surface water run-off are included:  €3,973 

  
Total cost: €62,157 

 
Reply 
The St. John Bosco Centre provides an excellent service to young people in the 
Drimnagh area, particularly targeting young people at risk. The centre is primarily 
funded by the CDYSB and is managed by a voluntary Board of Directors. 

  
There is no provision in the City Council budget for capital grants to repair 
Community/Youth Centres. In the past the St. John Bosco Youth Centre has received 
capital funding through the Young Peoples Facilities and Services Fund and the City 
of Dublin Youth Services Board. Dublin City Council will support the Youth Centre in 
future applications for similar funding. 

Page 13



  
Contact: Miriam Flynn, Community Development Officer, South Central Area  
Tel: 222 5514 
Email: Miriam.flynn@dublincity.ie 
 

Q19 Councillor Daithi Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q20 Councillor Daithi Doolan 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q21 Councillor Daithi Doolan 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q22 Councillor Daithi Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q23 Councillor Daithi Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q24 Councillor Daithi Doolan 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q25 Councillor Daithi Doolan 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q26 Councillor Daithi Doolan 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q27 Councillor Daithi Doolan 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

Page 14

mailto:Miriam.flynn@dublincity.ie


Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q28 Councillor Michael Mullooly 

To ask the Area Manager to detail the cleaning arrangements in the vicinity of 
Merchants Quay to Thomas Street with particular emphasis on how it deals with 
needles and other materials we associate with drugs and other substances. Is there 
an emergency service to clean spillage for example in the vicinity of schools. Is there 
a free phone number to call and report dangerous material and has this been 
advertised widely within the local community. 

 
Reply 
The main streets in this area are cleaned on a daily basis and the side turns are 
cleaned two or three times a week. Staff who clean in this area are familiar with the 
locations where drug paraphernalia turns up and ensure that it is removed in a 
prompt manner. We give top priority to any reports of syringes, needles etc in this 
area.  These reports come through our customer services centre Tel 222 2222 or 
through the after hours emergency number 6796186. 

 
 Contact: Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services. 
 Tel: 222 4240 
 Email: mick.boyle@dublincity.ie 
 
Q29 Councillor Michael Mullooly 

To ask the Area Manager if there is any proposal or plan to remember the role the 
Larkfield Estate at Kimmage (then owned by the Plunkett family) played in the Easter 
Rising of 1916 and events thereafter. Larkfield has since been developed for 
housing. The Estate covered an area roughly from Sundrive Road to the KCR. The 
property played a significant role in sheltering many emigrants who returned to take 
part in the Rising including Michael Collins. 

 
Reply 
Larkfield Estate in Kimmage is in the South East Area. Your question has been 
forwarded to the South East Area for their direct response. 

 
 Contact: Bruce Phillips, Senior Executive Officer, South Central Area 

Tel: 222 5108 
Email: bruce.phillips@dublincity.ie 

 
Q30 Councillor Greg Kelly 

To ask the Area Manager to arrange a full repair (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q31 Councillor Greg Kelly 

To ask the Area Manager if (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q32 Councillor Greg Kelly 

To ask the Area Manager if (details supplied). 
 

Reply 

Page 15



A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 
Q33 Councillor Greg Kelly 

To ask the Area Manager if (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q34 Councillor Greg Kelly 

To ask the Area Manager if signs can be put up (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q35 Councillor Greg Kelly 

To ask the Area Manager to have (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q36 Councillor Greg Kelly 

To ask the Area Manager to get the laneway (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q37 Councillor Greg Kelly 

To ask the Area Manager to update me on (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q38 Councillor Greg Kelly 

To ask the Area Manager if a bathroom adaption can be done at (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q39 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager if Dublin City Council please ensure that the following 
(details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q40 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager that the serious level of dumping at Rossmore Road, 
Drumfinn Road, Ballyfermot, Dublin 10, at the entrance to Californian Hills Park be 
addressed without delay and all efforts are made to address those responsible. I 
cannot accept the fact no one seems ever to be held accountable for same. I am 
sure Caritas College adjoining this park would allow D.C.C erect a CCTV camera to 
determine once and for all who is responsible. 

 
Reply 

Page 16



All reports relating to illegal dumping are forwarded to the Litter Warden service for 
investigation and appropriate follow up action. 

 
The use of CCTV to identify offenders is generally only successful where a vehicle is 

 used in committing an offence.  Where the offences are committed by passers by or 
 pedestrian traffic through the area it is not usually possible to identify these persons 
 and CCTV is not an effective enforcement tool.  If there is evidence available that 
 suggests offences are being committed by vehicle traffic CCTV will be considered. 
 
 Contact:  Simon Brock, Administrative Officer, Waste Management Division 
 Tel:  222 4620 
 Email:  simon.brock@dublincity.ie 
 
 Contact: Paul Rainsford, Public Domain Officer, South Central Area 

Tel: 222 6141 
Email: paul.rainsford@dublincity.ie 

 
Q41 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager if Dublin City Council could please let me know the 
following (details supplied).  
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q42 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager if Dublin City Council could please ensure that as part of 
the Lawns Park, Ballyfermot, upgrade that the proposal a few years ago to identify 
the physical location of Ballyfermot Castle with box hedging, the old graveyard & 
Church all be part of the upgrade. The Old graveyard should have a large Cross 
erected on the spot to identify the fact remains are located below one of my old 
neighbours has a sister buried here alas no physical location to pay respects. 

 
Reply 
The interpretation of historic artefacts in this area of Le Fanu Park would be 

 outside the scope of the current works to develop a skate park and play area in the 
 park. The development of interpretative signage for the site can be considered in the 
 context of 2017’s work programme. This project can be discussed further at our local 
 Park Management Meetings. 

 
Contact: Sean Redmond, Executive Parks Superintendent, Parks Department 
Tel:    222 3435 
Email:    sean.redmond@dublincity.ie 

 
Q43 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager that Dublin City Council look at the serious traffic 
congestion hazards currently happening every morning at Kylemore Road, 
Ballyfermot, with school traffic and people travelling to work it is an accident waiting 
to happen at this location and I appeal to Dublin City Council to look at the current 
situation with a view to trying to bring forward a better solution to the problem. 

 
Reply 
It is the policy of Dublin City Council to promote sustainable transport. Efforts are 
continually made to encourage more people to choose to walk, cycle or use public 
transport by making the experience for all road users safer and more pleasant. This 
will lower traffic speeds & reduce unnecessary car use. 

Page 17



 
The Quality Bus Network Project Office aims to provide efficient high class quality 
bus infrastructure for the Dublin Region through the delivery of an integrated network 
of on-street bus priority with the aim of improving road safety for all users 
encouraging people to travel in a sustainable way. The overriding objective was to 
promote the bus as a sustainable form of public transport by implementing an 
integrated network across the Greater Dublin Area using expert and efficient designs 
in improving bus priority and road safety with the main aim to encourage commuters 
to travel by greener modes. 

 
Developments are ongoing in a bid to increase the popularity of cycling in Dublin. 
Cycle lanes are being introduced/improved wherever possible.  
The cycle to work scheme has been in operation for a number of years now and 
been availed of by thousands of road users throughout the city. 
The Dublin Bikes innovation is proving extremely popular in the city centre which also 
helps reduce congestion in areas such as Ballyfermot. 

 
There is only a finite amount of space on the roads of Dublin and DCC do not have 
the authority or power to forbid people from using their car in favour of more 
sustainable methods of transport. 

 
Dublin City Council’s Road Safety Strategy 2016 – 2020 is currently being finalised 
with an intention to present it at the Transportation SPC in October 2016. 

 
Contact:  Adrian Dowling, Assistant Engineer, Environment & Transportation   
Tel:222 6230 
Email: adrian.dowling@dublincity.ie 

 
Q44 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager that Dublin City Council please look at the road surface 
along Ballyfermot Road, Dublin 10, the current situation is the road surface is in a 
very poor state and it needs to be resurfaced very badly. The current situation of 
patching the road way is no longer an option. 

 
Reply 
Road Maintenance Services will consider Ballyfermot Road (From Cherry Orchard 
Hospital to Blackditch Drive) for resurfacing as part of the 2017 Road Maintenance 
Re-Surfacing Programme. 

 
Contact: Anthony Cullen, Operations Engineer, Road Maintenance Services. 
Tel: 222 8812 
Email: anthony.cullen@dublincity.ie 

 
Q45 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager that Dublin City Council please ensure that the long 
awaiting play facility promised in 2007 for the Park next to Ballyfermot Civic Centre, 
Ballyfermot, be re-instated going forward and that it be included in the programme of 
works for 2017. When it was brought out for discussion with local residents we were 
told it would incorporate facilities for people with disabilities. 

 
Reply 
Resources are presently being directed towards the new development at Le Fanu 
Park. The proposed skatepark and play area here will be less than 600m from the 
Civic Centre and will address the need for play facilities in the locality. 

  

Page 18

Tel:222
mailto:adrian.dowling@dublincity.ie


Contact: Sean Redmond, Executive Parks Superintendent  
Tel:  222 3435 
Email: sean.redmond@dublincity.ie 

 
Q46 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager in the context of refurbishment of the Lawns Park, 
Ballyfermot, Dublin 10, that serious consideration be given to allowing the 
redevelopment of a section of the pavilion into a tea room as a gesture to encourage 
more positive usage of the Park. We don`t need a real fancy facility just somewhere 
people could buy a cup of Tea / Coffee etc. 

 
Reply 
The addition of tea rooms would be beyond the scope of the current plans to develop 
a  skate park and play area in Le Fanu Park. The feasibility of developing a small 
tea/coffee facility at the pavilion can be investigated as part of further improvement 
works to the park. 

 
Contact: Sean Redmond, Executive Parks Superintendent  
Tel: 222 3435 
Email: sean.redmond@dublincity.ie 

 
Q47 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager that Dublin City Council ensure the current practice of  
(details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q48 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager the total number of housing units granted planning 
permission for the Clancy Barracks and Clancy Quay site and their current stages of 
completion/construction.  

 
Reply 
 The overall Clancy Barracks site is divided into three phases.   
Phase 1, closest to the river comprised a total of 423 apartments in 11 buildings and 
has been completed.   
 
Phase 2 is currently under construction and comprises the conservation, 
rehabilitation, refurbishment of 9no. 2-3 storey protected buildings (B1, B2, B3, B5, 
B6, B7, B8, C2 and C3) for residential dwellings (77no. units), the construction of new 
2-storey courtyard houses (10no. units), and the construction of 2no. new residential 
apartment buildings ranging from 4 to 6-storeys (75no. units). 
Phase 3 will be the next phase of development on the overall site but has no current 
permission for residential development. 
            
Contact: Rhona Naughton, Senior Planner, Planning and Property Development 
Department 

 Tel: 222 6354 
Email: rhona.naughton@dublincity.ie 
 

Q49 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).  

 
Reply 

Page 19

mailto:rhona.naughton@dublincity.ie


A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 
Q50 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q51 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q52 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).  
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q53 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).  
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q54 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q55 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q56 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q57 Councillor Daithí De Róiste 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q58 Councillor Daithí De Róiste 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

Page 20



 
Q59 Councillor Daithí De Róiste 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q60 Councillor Daithí De Róiste 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q61 Councillor Daithí De Róiste 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q62 Councillor Daithí De Róiste 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q63 Councillor Daithí De Róiste 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q64 Councillor Daithí De Róiste 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q65 Councillor Daithí De Róiste 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q66 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Parks Department to arrange for a full clean-up of  
Clonmacnoise /Bangor Circle and also ensure that there is full cooperation between 
the Crumlin Area office and the local Garda Station in preventing bonfires both in the 
run up to Halloween and afterwards. There have been numerous fires on this circle in 
recent months and the remaining material has often been left there for long periods 
as well as broken glass. These objects are dangerous for both dogs being walked 
and local children playing. Can the Parks Department also provide litter bins on the 
circle so that responsible dog walkers can dispose of dog poo. 
 
Reply 

Page 21



Clonmacnoise/Bangor Circle is litter picked and cut on a weekly basis. Park staff 
have removed burnt-out material here over the past couple of weeks. The installation 
of additional bins in open spaces in general is being discussed with the Waste 
Management Section at the moment. 
 
Contact: Sean Redmond, Executive Parks Superintendent, Parks Department 
Tel:    222 3435 
Email:    sean.redmond@dublincity.ie 
 

Q67 Councillor Pat Dunne 
Can the Area Manager ask our Housing Maintenance House Adaptation Section to 
ensure that our tenant (details supplied) gets the necessary adaptations to ensure 
that she can adequately cope with her mobility problems. 

 
Reply 
A shower was installed at this dwelling on grounds of disability in 2008.  Further to 
receipt of a request for a stairlift in 2015, a stairlift was ordered and installed here 
also in May 2015. 
 
The tenant requested the lift be removed in May 2016 and this was done. 
 
The tenant submitted medical letters for her file to be reassessed for the provision 
of a bathroom extension at the dwelling.   The case was re-examined on medical 
grounds and awarded a moderate (level 1) medical priority for this extension.  Due to 
the volume of cases both in hand and approved for extensions meriting a high 
medical priority, it is unlikely this extension will be provided in the medium to long 
term.  The tenant was advised of this by letter on 12th August 2016. 
 
Contact:   Frank D’Arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Tel: 222 3617 
Email: jeane.moloney@dublincity.ie 

 
Q68 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Housing Maintenance House Adaptation Section 
ensure that our tenants (details supplied) get the necessary adaptations to ensure 
that they can adequately cope with their mobility problems. 

 
Reply 
An application was received from this tenant and was processed on 8th August 
2016.   As is the usual practice, all works applied for must be assessed for  
feasibility by our surveyor before being assessed on medical grounds. 
 
This case is due to be sent to the surveyor in the coming weeks and the feasibility of 
the works will be determined then.  If deemed feasible, the file will then be sent for  
assessment on medical grounds.  The tenant will be notified of the outcome of  
their application by letter.  
 
Contact: Frank D’Arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Tel:   222 3617 
Email: jeane.moloney@dublincity.ie 

 
Q69 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Housing Maintenance Section together with the 
Crumlin Area Office to arrange to have an electrical supply capable of carrying a 
current sufficient to charge the battery of a motorised scooter which has been 

Page 22



ordered by our tenant’s occupational therapist . Given the layout of her bungalow the 
scooter can only be kept in her shed and it is there that the electrical supply is 
needed. 

 
Reply 
Further to receipt of an occupational therapy report outlining the possibility of  
adapting the shed for scooter storage purposes at this property, the report 
was forwarded to a surveyor on the 6th October 2016. 
 
The surveyor will call to the property to assess if the structure is fit for this purpose 
and also the feasibility of providing a power supply to the structure.  This will also 
have to be assessed by the electrical services department. 
 
No indication can be given when, or indeed if, these works will be carried out until the 
above structural and safety assessments are carried out. 
 
We will notify the tenant by letter with the outcome in the near future. 
 
Contact: Frank D’Arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Tel:   222 3617 
Email: jeane.moloney@dublincity.ie 

 
Q70 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Housing Maintenance Section to complete previously 
promised repairs in our tenant’s flat (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
The Area Maintenance Officer reports that arrangements are being made to have 
tiling carried out in the bathroom and that all other outstanding works have been 
completed. 
 
Contact: Frank D’Arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Tel:   222 3617 
Email: bernie.reilly@dublincity.ie 

 
Q71 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Housing Maintenance Section to complete previously 
promised repairs in our tenant’s house and in particular fully repair the front door 
locking mechanism which was not satisfactorily repaired (details supplied). 

 
Reply 
Arrangements are being made to have a new locking mechanism sourced and 

 replaced.  It is expected that this will be completed within the next two weeks.  
 

 Contact:   Frank D’Arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Tel: 222 3517 
Email: bernie.reilly@dublincity.ie 

 
Q72 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask that our Housing Maintenance Section to undertake a full 
fabric upgrade to include insulation and deal with the issue of rising damp in the 
ground floor units of our Older Persons accommodation at Ravensdale Close, 
Kimmage. 

 
Reply 

Page 23



Ravensdale Close is currently undergoing essential maintenance works  which are 
due to be completed shortly. 
When these works are complete we will commence a full fabric upgrade survey with 
a view to improving the insulation of these units.  
 
Contact:   Frank D’Arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Tel:  222 3517 
Email: bernie.reilly@dublincity.ie 

 
Q73 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Housing Maintenance to complete previously 
promised repairs in our tenant’s flat (details supplied) and in particular deal with the 
issue of flooding caused by overspill from the downpipe as it enters the drain. This is 
causing rising damp in the hallway and bathroom. 

 
Reply 
Arrangements have been made to have the rain-water drain cleared at this address.  
This will be carried out in the next week. 
 
Contact:   Frank D’Arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Tel:   222 3517 
Email: bernie.reilly@dublincity.ie 

 
Q74 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Housing Maintenance to complete previously 
promised repairs in our tenant’s flat (details supplied). There is dampness throughout 
this bedsit and close to electrical supply also some of the stippling is peeling from the 
ceiling. 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q75 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Housing Maintenance Section to complete previously 
promised repairs in our tenant’s flat (details supplied). There is dampness throughout 
this bedsit and this been a ground floor flat it suffers from rising damp as a result of 
poorly sealed paving slabs around the flat. 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q76 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager investigate the progress on improving the access to Inchicore 
Library?  A timeline for the schedule of works, if there is one, would be appreciated.   

 
Reply 
Dublin City Public Libraries have been working with City Architect’s Division over the 
last number of months in developing a design brief for Inchicore Library. City 
Architect’s have in the last two weeks sought expressions of interest from their panel 
of consulting architects and received a good response. 

 
The primary aim of this project is to restore, and provide and maximise access to the 
existing facility:  

• Expand on the existing service located within the building.  

Page 24



• Exploit its unique location and architectural qualities to make it accessible 
and visible. 

• Fulfil the operational and spatial requirements, including but not limited to 
the following: universal access to the building; provide for existing self-
service infrastructure; improved wi-fi; upgraded CCTV system; upgraded 
alarm systems; installation of public toilet facilities. 

 
The approximate timetable for this project as received from City Architect’s Division is 
as follows: 

 
• Tenders due back:     26.10.16 
• 2 weeks for selection and managers order:  11.11.16 
• Preliminary design plus 6 weeks:   23.12.16 
• Detail Design plus 4 weeks:    30.01.17 
• Tender action plus 16 weeks:    26.05.17 
• Construction on site plus 26 weeks:   10.12.17 (inc. 

builders’ holidays) 
• Client fit-out by Libraries plus 8 weeks:  30.01.18 

 
 
Contact: Paul Fusco, Senior Librarian, Finance & Buildings Dublin City Public 
Libraries 

 Tel:  6744825 
Email:  paul.fusco@dublincity.ie 

 
Q77 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

To ask the relevant department to arrange pruning of the trees that overhang the 
public green space adjacent number 11 Old County Glen, Crumlin. Residents there 
are concerned as young people light bonfires on the green at Halloween and the 
trees may catch fire. 
 
Reply 
This area can be included on our pruning list. Work will be carried out before the end 

 of October. 
 

Contact: Sean Redmond, Executive Parks Superintendent, Parks Department  
Tel:    222 3435 
Email:    sean.redmond@dublincity.ie 
 

Q78 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 
To ask that the relevant Department call back out to our tenant (details supplied) 
 as he had someone out to inspect an issue with mice. They were due to call back 
but he has not heard. 

 
Reply 
Arrangements have been made to have the aperture filled and the matter has been 
passed on to the HSE to have the rodent infestation addressed. 
 
Contact: Frank D’Arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Phone: 222 3517 
Email: bernie.reilly@dublincity.ie 

 
Q79 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

To ask our Area Manager to advise on how to go about organising a derogation, on 
night time hours for road works (be they traffic,  road maintenance, ESB etc) in the 

Page 25

mailto:sean.redmond@dublincity.ie


vicinity of the SCR, for the duration of the Children's Hospital construction at the 
request of residents. Currently there are a few different works taking place which 
when hospital works are included means they are subjected to noise 21.5 hours a 
day. 

 
Reply 
South Circular Road is currently undergoing road resurfacing works which will be 
completed by the 6th November and includes raising ironworks and line markings.  
Road resurfacing works can only be carried out on the South Circular Road after 
19.30hrs when the evening peak traffic flow subsides. The noisiest aspect of the 
work is completed before 23.00hrs. Works are permitted after 23.00 but the noise 
issue is at a lower level. This is a citywide policy. 
 
In general, Dublin City Council’s Roadworks Control Directive sets out the Council’s 
requirements with respect to road works and details the restrictions on the timings of 
said works. Each road/street is graded according to its importance as a strategic 
traffic route. South Circular Road is an impact 4 road which means road works are 
permitted between 19.30hrs to 23.00hrs (Mon – Wed), 21.00hrs to 23.00hrs (Thurs & 
Fri) and 09.00hrs to 23.00hrs (Sat, Sun and Public Holidays).  
 

 
Contact: Conrad Rennicks, Acting Administrative Officer, Environment and 
Transportation 

            Tel:  222 2281 
            Email:    conrad.rennicks@dublincity.ie 
 
Q80 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

To ask our Area Manager to set about rescheduling the public consultations that 
were due to take place regarding the public park at Bridgefoot Street and to provide 
this Councillor with a report setting out time lines and workshop format.  

 
Reply 
Dublin City Council's Interdepartmental Land Management Group has established an 
interdepartmental working group to consider proposals for the lands on Bridgefoot 
Street.  Any proposal must take into account the existing zoning and objectives for 
the lands as outlined in the Liberties Local Area Plan 2009-2019 adopted by the 
members of the City Council. Any proposal for consideration must contain a 
significant public park together with a number of uses including residential and mixed 
use development to improve the existing streetscape and provide passive 
surveillance for the public park. 
Once a proposal has been agreed, an update will be provided to Councillors 
regarding the design consultation workshops.   
 
Contact:  Bruce Phillips, Senior Executive Officer, South Central Area Office 
Tel:  222 5108 
Email:  bruce.phillips@dublincity.ie 

 
Q81 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

To ask our Area Manager to provide this Councillor with a report setting out the 
reasons all litter bins have been removed from the Tenters, most recently from Oscar 
Square, including whether and in what time frame these bins could be re-installed.  

 
Reply 
Any litter bins which were removed from the Tenters were being abused on a regular 
basis with significant illegal dumping of household waste taking place both in the bins 

Page 26

mailto:conrad.rennicks@dublincity.ie


and in their vicinity. They had in fact become a focal point for dumping. For this 
reason there are no plans to replace these bins. 

 
Contact: Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services 
Tel: 222 4240 
Email: mick.boyle@dublincity.ie 

 
Q82 Councillor Rebecca Moynihan 

To ask the Area Manager to make a statement on the housing situation of (details 
supplied).  
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Page 27





DIRECTOR OF TRAFFIC 
     OIFIG AN BHAINISTEOIR TRÁCHTA 
     The following items for the South Central Area were considered by Traffic Advisory Group at it’s meeting on the 25/10/2016  

Item Request Ref Road Post 
code 

Topic Request 
Description 

Request 
by 

TAG Result TAG Comments Sec Date Rec'd 

1 Traffic 
Conditions 

34193 BALLYFERMOT 
ROAD (SC-EA) 

D10 School 
Warden 
Crossing 
Box 

outside 
St.Gabriels 
School. 

DCC 
Road 
Safety 

Recommended Install a yellow box (RRM 020) to a size of 10.5 x 2 metres to stretch 
across the entire carriageway of Ballyfermot Road, outside St. 
Gabriel’s School. The box should be positioned from a point 2 
metres east of the common boundary of 165 & 167 Ballyfermot Road 
to a point 4 metres east of the common boundary of 165 & 167 
Ballyfermot Road. 
The box should run perpendicular to the carriageway and should be 
centred between the last two bollards on the north side of the road. 

0 30/09/2016 

2 Traffic 
Conditions 

34036 BARNVILLE 
PARK (SC-EA) 

D10 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road. cllr Not 
Recommended 

Clarification was sought of the exact location and in turn having 
visited the site, it is not recommended to install any further ramps at 
this location. 
The longest section of straight road is less than 60 metres. The 
minimum length for ramps to be considered is 200 metres.   

0 22/09/2016 

3 Parking 
Prohibitions 

33981 CAPTAINS 
DRIVE (SC-EA) 

D12 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at the junction 
of Captains 
Drive and 
Captains 
Road. 

resident Not 
Recommended 

Regarding dangerous parking on the junction of Captains Drive and 
Captains Road, It is not Dublin City Council policy to introduce 
parking restrictions where restrictions are already covered under the 
law, such as extending yellow lines around corners. 
It is illegal to park in such a manner as the customer has described 
as per the Road Traffic Regulations Act 1997, Section 36, parts “c”. 
( c ) within 5 metres of a road junction; 
Infringements of the Act should be reported to Dublin Street Parking 
Services Ph.6022500 for enforcement under the law. 

0 20/09/2016 

4 Parking 
Prohibitions 

20617 CLADDAGH 
GREEN (SC-
EA) 

D10 Pay & 
Display & 
Permit 
Parking 

for extra 
parking 
between St 
Mary's Youth 
Club and 
Claddagh 
Court older 
persons 
complex 

resident Not 
Recommended 

It is not the policy of DCC to remove a public shared facility in favour 
of parking facilities for individual motorists. The public amenity is 
located between the youth club & the old person's complex and 
should remain as is in accordance with the Dublin City Development 
Plan 2016-2022 - To promote built environments and outdoor shared 
spaces which are accessible to all. 

0 06/10/2015 

5 Pedestrian 
Facilities 

29074 CLADDAGH 
GREEN (SC-
EA) 

D10 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

near Claddagh 
Court and the 
local shops.  

t.d. Not 
Recommended 

Following numerous site visits over the past 4 months it is not 
recommended to install a pedestrian crossing in either location. The 
characteristics at either point do not significantly warrant a controlled 
pedestrian crossing. 
Following discussions with representatives from the Ballyfermot area 
office it was agreed to install a yellow box running between two 
existing dishes in the footpath to facilitate people crossing from the 
old folks home to the shops at Claddagh Green.  

0 25/01/2016 

P
age 29



6 Traffic 
Conditions 

34284 CLADDAGH 
GREEN (SC-
EA) 

D10 Yellow 
Box 

on the road. dcc 
traffic 
mgt. 

Recommended Following discussions with representatives from the Ballyfermot area 
office it was agreed that to install a yellow box running between two 
existing dishes in the footpath to facilitate people crossing from the 
old folks home to the shops at Claddagh Green. 
Install a 2.5m wide yellow box, the full width of the carriageway on 
Claddagh Green opposite Boylan’s Pharmacy. On the West side of 
the road, the box should start from a point 17.1 metres South of LS2 
to a point 19.6 metres South of LS2. 
This should correspond to a position on the East side of the road 
which stretches from a point 2.0  metres North of LS3 and 4.5 
metres North of LS3, and on this side the box should lie immediately 
adjacent to an existing Disabled parking bay. 
There are existing dishes in both footpaths at each side which this 
box should be centred on. 

0 12/10/2016 

7 Parking 
Prohibitions 

33883 CLONARD 
ROAD (SC-EA) 

D12 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

on the road. resident Not 
Recommended 

This anti-social behaviour is a matter for An Gardaí. The installation 
of any additional road markings will have little effect on such 
behavioural activity and therefore is not recommended. The road 
widths do not warrant the install of DYLs. 
Double yellow lines are provided as a measure to maintain a through 
flow of traffic and to prevent congestion. This request does not meet 
the criteria for the provision of double yellow lines and is therefore 
not recommended. Illegal parking along with anti-social behaviour 
should continue to be reported to the Gardai or to Dublin Street 
Parking Services tel no.  6022500. 

0 15/09/2016 

8 Parking 
Prohibitions 

29264 JOHN 
MCCORMACK 
AVENUE (SC-
EA) 

D12 Parking 
Prohibition 

to stop cars 
parking on 
footpaths/parki
ng restriction 
measures. 

resident Not 
Recommended 

Following a site visit it was noted that these are extremely lightly 
trafficked roads. Neither road reaches the 200m straight stretch of 
road criteria. The roads have on street parking which acts as a 
further traffic calming measure. Given the residential nature of the 
roads the onus is on the motorist to drive in a safe manner. 
Parking on footpaths was also observed. There are no appropriate 
measures against this action as at present, parking on a footway is 
illegal under Article 36 of the Road Traffic (Traffic and Parking) 
Regulations 1997. Infringements of the Act should be reported to the 
Gardai or Dublin Street Parking Services Ph.6022500 for 
enforcement under the law. 
No further measures are recommended at this stage 

0 03/02/2016 

9 Traffic 
Conditions 

30755 KEEPER ROAD 
(SC-EA) 

D12 Speed 
Ramps 

or for a more 
effective 
Speed 
Ramp outside 
No. 264.   

resident Not 
Recommended 

Ramps do have unwelcome side effects such as additional noise, 
vehicle damage and possible personal injury. The Ambulance 
Service has expressed concerns about the effect of ramps on people 
with spinal injuries travelling over ramps, whilst The Fire Services 
are also concerned that ramps delay the response time of their fire 
tenders. 
DCC has a policy not to install ramps on bus routes for similar 
reasons. Given that Keeper Rd is a bus route the specification 
should remain at what is installed - 10m ramps on bus routes, 100 
mm high with 1: 20 slopes. 

0 13/04/2016 

P
age 30



10 Parking 
Prohibitions 

34138 KEEPER ROAD 
(SC-EA) 

D8 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at the junction 
of Keeper 
Road and 
Slievenamon 
Road. 
  
  

dcc 
sustaina
ble 
traffic 
unit 

Not 
Recommended 

It is not recommended to introduce parking restrictions where 
restrictions are already covered under the law, such as extending 
yellow lines around corners, as this would lead to a proliferation of 
same and additional expense due to maintenance etc. 
Infringements of the Act is being referred to the Gardai or Dublin 
Street Parking Services Ph.6022500 for enforcement under the law. 

0 27/09/2016 

11 Traffic Signs 34140 KEEPER ROAD 
(SC-EA) 

  Stop Sign STOP 
LINE/MARKIN
G 

dcc 
sustaina
ble 
traffic 
unit 

Not 
Recommended 

Motorists exiting the 45 metre stretch of the Cul de Sac approaching 
the bend of Keeper Rd & Slievenamon Rd are fully aware they are 
approaching a larger road. 
Under the road traffic act, traffic on a road ending at a junction must 
give way to traffic from either direction on the other road. A stop sign 
is not necessary where normal rules of the road apply, moreover 
such signs are only provided on approaches to major junctions, 
otherwise this would lead to a proliferation of signs throughout 
residential estates. Therefore this request is not recommended. 

0 04/10/2016 

12 Traffic Signs 28775 KILDARE ROAD 
(SC-EA) 

D12 Parking 
Prohibition 

'NO 
PARKING' 
sign or double 
yellow lines 
outside No. 
52.  

resident Not 
Recommended 

D.C.C. do not provide “no parking” signage other than in areas 
where double yellow lines cannot be marked i.e. on cobble locked 
roads. Such signs are accompanied by a time restriction and are 
installed at either end of a clearly defined restricted area. 
Double yellow lines are provided to ensure the smooth flow of traffic 
and prevent congestion where parking causes congestion which 
would interfere with traffic flows on a daily basis. Following recent 
site visits, no adverse problems regarding parking were observed. 
As the warrant has not been met parking restrictions are not 
recommended. 

0 08/01/2016 

13 Traffic 
Signals 

29530 KYLEMORE 
ROAD (SC-EA) 

D12 Right Turn 
Filter Light 

from Kylemore 
Road onto Old 
Naas Road.  

resident Not 
Recommended 

Due to the road width at this location it is not possible to install a 
right turning filter light.  

0 09/02/2016 

14 Traffic 
Conditions 

33263 LOUGH CONN 
ROAD (SC-EA) 

D10 Speed 
Ramps 

request for 
ramps  

t.d. Not 
Recommended 

The installation of speed ramps on LOUGH CONN ROAD is not 
recommended. The longest section of straight road is close to 150m 
and this section is interrupted by the junction onto LOUGH CONN 
AVENUE. The bends here are quite significant which should slow 
motorists down. The road is lightly trafficked and has on street 
parking which further acts as a traffic calming measure. 
The customer’s complaint regarding  boy racers speeding up & down 
the street in their high performance cars is an issue for An Gardaí. 
Perversely, it has been shown that motorists engaging in such anti-
social behaviour are shown to favour roads with ramps. 

0 15/08/2016 

15 Parking 
Prohibitions 

32437 NEW ROW 
SOUTH (SC-EA) 

D8 Disabled 
Parking 
Bay 
(Residenti
al) 

outside No. 5, 
Lauderdale 
Terrace, New 
Row Sth. Pay 
and Display 
and Permit 
Parking 
would be 
rescinded. 

resident Recommended Rescind Pay and Display and Permit Parking from the point in line 
with the common boundary of No.5 and No. 6 Lauderdale Terrace, 
New Row South, extending Northeast for a distance of 6 metres. 
Provide a Disabled Parking Bay from the point in line with the 
common boundary of No.5 and No. 6 Lauderdale Terrace, New Row 
South, extending Northeast for a distance of 6 metres 

0 01/07/2016 

P
age 31



16 Parking 
Prohibitions 

30033 RAFTER'S 
AVENUE (SC-
EA) 

D12 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at the junction 
of Rafters 
Avenue and 
Rafters Road 
and on Rafters 
Road to the 
junction of 
Crumlin 
Road.   

resident Not 
Recommended 

Regarding illegal parking on the junction of Crumlin Road and 
Rafters Road and also Rafters Avenue and Rafters Road, It is not 
Dublin City Council policy to introduce parking restrictions where 
restrictions are already covered under the law, such as extending 
yellow lines around corners. 
It is illegal to park in such a manner as the customer has described 
as per the Road Traffic Regulations Act 1997, Section 36, parts “c”. 
( c ) within 5 metres of a road junction; 
Infringements of the Act should be reported to Dublin Street Parking 
Services Ph.6022500 for enforcement under the law. 
Parking enforcement will continue to respond to illegal parking 
requests as they arise on Rafters Road.  

0 02/03/2016 

17 Parking 
Prohibitions 

20014 RAFTERS 
ROAD (SC-EA) 

D12 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

on Rafters 
Road at the 
junction with 
Rafters Lane. 

resident Not 
Recommended 

Regarding dangerous parking on the junction of Rafters Lane and 
Rafters Road, It is not Dublin City Council policy to introduce parking 
restrictions where restrictions are already covered under the law, 
such as extending yellow lines around corners. 
It is illegal to park in such a manner as the customer has described 
as per the Road Traffic Regulations Act 1997, Section 36, parts “c”. 
( c ) within 5 metres of a road junction; 
Infringements of the Act should be reported to Dublin Street Parking 
Services Ph.6022500 for enforcement under the law. 

4 04/09/2015 

18 Parking 
Prohibitions 

20197 RAFTERS 
ROAD (SC-EA) 

D12 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

at the junction 
of Rafters 
Road and 
Crumlin Road. 

cllr Not 
Recommended 

Regarding dangerous parking on the junction of Crumlin Road and 
Rafters Road, It is not Dublin City Council policy to introduce parking 
restrictions where restrictions are already covered under the law, 
such as extending yellow lines around corners. 
It is illegal to park in such a manner as the customer has described 
as per the Road Traffic Regulations Act 1997, Section 36, parts “c”. 
( c ) within 5 metres of a road junction; 
Infringements of the Act should be reported to Dublin Street Parking 
Services Ph.6022500 for enforcement under the law. 

1 16/09/2015 

19 Traffic Signs 30168 RAFTERS 
ROAD (SC-EA) 

D12 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

Between Nos. 
90-120. 

cllr Not 
Recommended 

Dublin City Council does not recommend the 'Children Crossing’ 
signs except in the proximity of schools or adjacent to designated 
play areas such as parks, if appropriate. They are not regarded to be 
effective at changing driver behaviour on the road or reducing 
speeds. The excessive allocation (or proliferation) of such warning 
signs also undermines their effectiveness at better warranted 
locations such as schools. 
The section of road between numbers 90 & 120 is marked SLOW on 
the ground and has a speed ramp. It is on a bend also, where the 
onus is on drivers to behave appropriate to their surroundings.  

0 07/03/2016 

P
age 32



20 Traffic Signs 30163 REGINALD 
STREET (SC-
EA) 

D8 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

at Reginald 
Street / Gray 
Street.  

cllr Not 
Recommended 

Dublin City Council does not recommend the 'Children Crossing’ 
signs except in the proximity of schools or adjacent to designated 
play areas such as parks, if appropriate. They are not regarded to be 
effective at changing driver behaviour on the road or reducing 
speeds. The excessive allocation (or proliferation) of such warning 
signs also undermines their effectiveness at better warranted 
locations such as schools. 

0 07/03/2016 

21 Traffic 
Conditions 

31279 RING STREET 
(SC-EA) 

D8 Traffic 
Calming 

ramps on the 
road 

cllr Not 
Recommended 

The proximity of the existing ramps at the junction of Ring St & O’ 
Donoghue St (between 25 – 40 metres) are deemed to be adequate. 
This factor, combined with the speed checks which reported an 
average vehicular speed of 32 km/h which was reported in January 
2015 illustrate that no further traffic calming measures are to be 
recommended. The onus is on the motorist to drive with due care 
and at a speed appropriate for the prevailing conditions 

2 18/05/2016 

22 Parking 
Prohibitions 

32374 RING STREET 
(SC-EA) 

D8 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

on the 
four corners of 
the junction. 

t.d. Not 
Recommended 

It is not recommended to introduce parking restrictions where 
restrictions are already covered under the law, such as extending 
yellow lines around corners, as this would lead to a proliferation of 
same and additional expense due to maintenance etc. 
Infringements of the Act should be referred to Dublin Street Parking 
Services Ph.6022500 for enforcement under the law. 

0 21/06/2016 

23 Parking 
Prohibitions 

32106 SOUTH 
CIRCULAR 
ROAD (SC-EA) 

D8 Double 
Yellow 
Lines 

On South 
Circular Road 
at the junction 
of Dufferin 
Avenue.  

cllr Not 
Recommended 

Double Yellow lines are already installed to a point 5 metres from the 
Junction of Dufferin Avenue. This is deemed to be of ample distance 
to provide motorists with visibility to exit said avenue. 
Added to the fact that during morning peak rush hours these 
proposed DYLs are in a Bus Lane where it is illegal to park between 
0700 - 1000am. 

0 13/06/2016 

24 Traffic Signs 32607 SOUTH 
CIRCULAR 
ROAD (SC-EA) 

D8 No Left 
Turn 

From South 
Circular Road 
onto 
Haroldville 
Avenue, 
during 
morning peak. 
  

cllr Not 
Recommended 

No Left turn signs not recommended. 
Following a traffic survey it was discovered that from 7am to 11am 
less than 45 vehicles per hour were making the turn from SCR onto 
Haroldville Ave. This equates to less than 1 vehicle every 80 
seconds. It should be noted that a percentage of these vehicles 
would be taking this route to access properties on the avenue. 
It was discovered that from 7am to 11am less than 5 vehicles per 
hour were making the turn from SCR onto Church Ave South. 

0 28/06/2016 

25 Traffic Signs 31222 TYRCONNELL 
PARK (SC-EA) 

D8 Children 
Crossing 
Sign 

for both ends 
of the road 
and at 
entrance to 
the cul de sac. 

resident Not 
Recommended 

The "children at play" sign has been replaced with the "children 
crossing sign". 
Dublin City Council does not recommend the 'Children Crossing’ 
signs except in the proximity of schools or adjacent to designated 
play areas such as parks, if appropriate. They are not regarded to be 
effective at changing driver behaviour on the road or reducing 
speeds. The excessive allocation (or proliferation) of such warning 
signs also undermines their effectiveness at better warranted 
locations such as schools. 
In addition, these signs are not normally to be erected on main 
roads, traffic calmed roads or cul-de-sacs.  

1 09/05/2016 

P
age 33



26 Traffic 
Conditions 

33949 WALLACE 
ROAD (SC-EA) 

D6 Speed 
Cushions 

Request for 
speed ramps 
at above 
roads. 

resident Not 
Recommended 

It is not recommended to install ramps on Wallace Road or Harty 
Avenue. The roads are both lightly trafficked and fall far short of the 
200metre minimum length requirement for the introduction of traffic 
calming measure such as ramps. 
Regarding the issues on the footpaths, Under The Road Traffic 
(Traffic & Parking) Regulations, Section 36 paragraph(2) (i), it is 
illegal to park on a footway, a grass margin or a median strip” 
Infringements of the Act should be reported to the Gardai or Dublin 
Street Parking Services Ph.6022500 for enforcement under the law. 

0 22/09/2016 

27 Traffic 
Conditions 

34222 WINDMILL 
AVENUE (SC-
EA) 

D12 Speed 
Ramps 

on the road.  resident Not 
Recommended 

The installation of speed ramps on Windmill Ave, Crumlin, Dublin 12 
is not recommended. Whilst the length of road is close to 200m 
(approx 185m), it is not a straight road. The bend is quite significant 
which should slow motorists down. The road is lightly trafficked and 
has on street parking which further acts as a traffic calming measure. 
The customer’s complaint regarding “a number of boy racers that 
insist on doing wheel spins at the corners” is an issue for An Gardaí. 
Perversely, it has been shown that motorists engaging in such anti-
social behaviour are shown to prefer roads with ramps. 

0 29/09/2016 

28 Pedestrian 
Facilities 

34079 WINDMILL 
ROAD (SC-EA) 

D12 Pedestrian 
Crossing 

on Windmill 
Road at the 
junction with 
Crumlin 
Village. 

cllr Not 
Recommended 

A Kerb build out has been incorporated at the junction of Windmill 
Rd & Crumlin Village at the Nortwest side of the junction (by the Hub 
Pub). This creates a crossing distance of slightly longer than 7 
metres. With any introduction of a central pedestrian refuge island 
(minimum advisable width of 2 metres), this would leave a road width 
of scarcely over 2.5 metres each side of the island. 
This addition would prove too difficult for vehicular turning access to 
be managed in a safe manner. It would endanger pedestrians 
waiting on the central island and at both sides of Windmill Rd. 
Therefore a pedestrian refuge isn't recommended at this location. 

0 21/09/2016 

 

P
age 34



Traffic Service Requests,  

Status Report at 15th October, 2016 

South Central Area Committee Meeting, Date: 16th November, 2016. 

                            Please note that to ensure continued efficient operation of the Sharepoint database system it has become necessary to archive  
                                         all  completed items up to and including 31/12/15. Therefore these items are not reflected in the Status Report. 

  
Total TAG Requests received (from 1st Jan 2015  to 15th Oct 2016) 207 

 Total TAG Requests Completed (from 1st Jan 2015 to 15th Oct 2016) 
66 

  
No. of TAG Requests received since previous report (Sept 2016) 

24 

Total TAG Requests currently open on Sharepoint 282 

  

Breakdown of TAG Requests currently open on Sharepoint 
 Stage 1 7 

Stage 2 199 

Stage 3 2 

Stage 4 55 

Stage 5 19 

  

  Non-TAG Service Request Statistics 
 Total Non-TAG Requests received since 2016 592 

               …of which Requests Completed 392 

Requests currently open on Sharepoint received since 01/01/2013 293 

 

 

 

P
age 35



Traffic Advisory Group Status Reports 
 

Explanation of Stages: 

 

 Stage 1 -  Set up file, Assignment to Engineer, etc 

 Stage 2 - Assessment, Site surveys, review statutory orders, etc 

 Stage 3 - Consultations, with Garda, Dublin Bus, Luas, NTA, Local residents / businesses, etc 

 Stage 4 - Decision, TAG group, statutory orders, etc 

 Stage 5 - Implementation, signs, lines, construction, signal changes, certifications, etc 

 

Item SR Road/Street/Avenue 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received SR Status 

1 33949 WALLACE RD (SC) D6 Speed Cushions Or speed ramps on the road(s) 22/09/2016 Stage 1 

2 33972 STANNAWAY DRIVE (SC) D12 
Disabled Parking Bay 
(General) 

Request 2 bays opposite entrance gates 
to facility 22/09/2016 Stage 1 

3 33981 CAPTAINS DRIVE (SC) D12 Double Yellow Lines 
at the junction of Captains Drive and 
Captains Road. 20/09/2016 Stage 1 

4 34066 WOODFIELD PLACE (SC) D10 
Disabled Parking Bay 
(Residential) adjacent to No.9 29/09/2016 Stage 1 

5 34083 WINDMILL RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
or double yellow lines outside the 
Swimming Pool 21/09/2016 Stage 1 

6 34266 KIMMAGE RD LOWER (SC) D12 Right Turn Filter Light 
from Kimmage Road Lower onto 
Ravensdale Park.  04/10/2016 Stage 1 

7 34314 BASIN STREET UPPER (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines 
on Basin View, outside Canalway 
Educate Together National School. 07/10/2016 Stage 1 

8 7126 PARNELL RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing On all sides of the junction.  10/05/2013 Stage 2 

9 7464 DOLPHIN RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
At the junction of Herberton Road and 
Dolphin Rd.                28/05/2013 Stage 2 

10 9452 JAMES'S STREET (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
Wrap around crossing for junction with 
Bow Lane West, Steeven's Lane. 12/11/2013 Stage 2 

P
age 36



Item SR Road/Street/Avenue 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received SR Status 

11 9881 STEEVEN'S LANE (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
At the junction with St. Patrick’s 
Hospital. 09/12/2013 Stage 2 

12 9960 DOLPHIN RD (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
At the junction of Herberton Road and 
Dolphin Road.  11/12/2013 Stage 2 

13 12252 KIMMAGE RD WEST (SC) D12 Pedestrian Phase 
On the traffic lights at the junction of 
Shelton Drive. 12/05/2014 Stage 2 

14 12388 DOLPHIN RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing At the junction of Herberton Road. 12/05/2014 Stage 2 

15 12560 WALKINSTOWN RD (SC) D12 Cycle Track On Walkinstown Road. 23/05/2014 Stage 2 

16 12589 NAAS RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
on the east side of the junction of 
Walkinstown Avenue  26/05/2014 Stage 2 

17 13835 THOMAS STREET (SC) D8 Loading Bay 
Reconsideration of previous request for 
Loading Bay at 129/128 Thomas St. 29/08/2014 Stage 2 

18 13907 FRANCIS STREET (SC) D8 Cycle Track 

Two-way cycle lane or lanes on both 
sides of the street 
  27/08/2014 Stage 2 

19 15133 MARTIN'S ROW (SC) D20 Intelligent Traffic Signals 
Outside St. Patrick's National School, 
Chapelizod 03/11/2014 Stage 2 

20 15760 DOLPHIN RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Herberton Road. 10/12/2014 Stage 2 

21 15815 HERBERTON RD (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
At the junction of Dolphin Road, to 
cross the bridge. 02/12/2014 Stage 2 

22 15816 DOLPHIN RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Dolphin’s Barn and 
Parnell Road, to cross the bridge. 02/12/2014 Stage 2 

23 15817 DONORE AVE (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Parnell Road, to cross 
the bridge. 02/12/2014 Stage 2 

24 16301 BULFIN RD (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of South Circular Road.  22/01/2015 Stage 2 

25 16389 HERBERTON RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Dolphin Road.  02/02/2015 Stage 2 

26 16930 MARTIN'S ROW (SC) D20 Pedestrian Crossing 
for pedestrian entrance to St. Patrick's 
National School (Appeal of SR 15055). 24/02/2015 Stage 2 

27 17817 KIMMAGE RD WEST (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Lorcan O'Toole Park 
and Shelton Grove. 23/04/2015 Stage 2 

28 17975 SUNDRIVE RD (SC) D12 Yellow Box (Extend) outside Supervalu. 01/05/2015 Stage 2 

P
age 37



Item SR Road/Street/Avenue 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received SR Status 

29 17976 SUNDRIVE RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing Between Supervalu and the bus stop.  01/05/2015 Stage 2 

30 18130 BRABAZON ROW (SC) D8 Loading Bay 
to reinstate the Loading Bay to its 
original position on Brabazon Row. 13/07/2015 Stage 2 

31 18446 SEAN HEUSTON BRIDGE (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
Pedestrian Crossing or Zebra Crossing 
at south end of Sean Heuston Bridge.  27/06/2015 Stage 2 

32 18780 ERRIGAL RD (SC) D8 Traffic Calming on the road. 17/06/2015 Stage 2 

33 18891 WEAVERS SQUARE (SC) D8 
Pay & Display & Permit 
Parking on the road. 25/06/2015 Stage 2 

34 18938 HIGH STREET (SC) D8 Yellow Box at junction of Bridge Street inbound 29/06/2015 Stage 2 

35 18987 CAPTAINS RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing 

pedestrian lights and slow down 
signs for junction of Captains Road / 
Stannaway Rd 02/07/2015 Stage 2 

36 19139 DOLPHIN RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Herberton Road.  06/07/2015 Stage 2 

37 19178 TURVEY AVE (SC) D8 
Pay & Display & Permit 
Parking on the road. 15/07/2015 Stage 2 

38 19205 KIMMAGE RD LOWER (SC) D6W Cycle Track 
Mandatory Cycle Lane inbound and 
outbound from 07.00 to 22.00 hours. 10/07/2015 Stage 2 

39 19206 CLANBRASSIL STREET LOWER       (SC) D8 Cycle Track 

Mandatory Cycle Lane inbound and 
outbound from 07.00 to 22.00 hours.  
  10/07/2015 Stage 2 

40 19229 CHERRY ORCHARD AVE (SC) D10 Traffic Calming 
on the road. 
  20/07/2015 Stage 2 

41 19298 COLEPARK DRIVE (SC) D10 Speed Ramps on the road. 22/07/2015 Stage 2 

42 19389 SLIEVEBLOOM PARK (SC) D12 No U-Turn at Slievebloom Park.  24/07/2015 Stage 2 

43 19403 MALPAS STREET (SC) D8 Yellow Box outside Firstop 28/07/2015 Stage 2 

44 19687 STH CIRCULAR RD (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
between Bulfin Rd and Brookfield Rd 
  17/08/2015 Stage 2 

45 19688 STH CIRCULAR RD (SC) D8 Traffic Calming between Bulfin Rd and Brookfield Road 17/08/2015 Stage 2 

46 19727 STH CIRCULAR RD (SC) D8 Speed Ramps Opposite Islandbridge flats. 19/08/2015 Stage 2 

47 19820 PARNELL RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing at junction with Clogher Road 25/08/2015 Stage 2 

48 19842 BUNTING RD (SC) D11 Yellow Box outside AW Carpets shop (No.148) 26/08/2015 Stage 2 

P
age 38



Item SR Road/Street/Avenue 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received SR Status 

49 19857 STH CIRCULAR RD (SC) D8 Yellow Box 
Southbound at intersection with Saint 
Johns Road West. 27/08/2015 Stage 2 

50 20006 DRUMFINN RD (SC) D10 Yellow Box 
 Request for a bus parking bay outside 
No.27  07/09/2015 Stage 2 

51 20032 MOURNE RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing on the road. 08/09/2015 Stage 2 

52 20047 KNOCKNAREA RD (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines along side of infant & primary schools 09/09/2015 Stage 2 

53 20072 JAMES'S WALK (SC) D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) at Fatima Luas stop  10/09/2015 Stage 2 

54 20073 REUBEN WALK (SC) D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) 

along Reuben Walk/Way onto other 
side of the road  10/09/2015 Stage 2 

55 20202 CHERRY ORCHARD AVE (SC) D10 Traffic Calming 

in the general Cherry Orchard Area. (A 
number of roads include the Cherry 
Orchard area). 16/09/2015 Stage 2 

56 20208 STANNAWAY RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Stannaway and 
Captains Road. 16/07/2015 Stage 2 

57 20211 GALTYMORE DRIVE (SC) D12 Children Crossing Sign at both entrances. 15/07/2015 Stage 2 

58 20244 CURLEW RD (SC) D12 Double Yellow Lines 

due to problems entering Curlew Rd 
Health Centre; parked cars blocking 
visibility 17/09/2015 Stage 2 

59 20316 PATRICK STREET (SC) D8 Stop Sign 
To replace the YIELD sign at above 
junction 22/09/2015 Stage 2 

60 20327 CHERRY ORCHARD AVE (SC) D10 
Bus Cage Marking 
(Rescind) 

to move bus stop into middle of double 
yellow lines and bus cage on both sides 
of road 
  21/09/2015 Stage 2 

61 20335 TYRCONNELL RD (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines 
outside gate of Tyrconnell Place 
residence. 22/09/2015 Stage 2 

62 20353 ERRIGAL RD (SC) D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) to be extended up to the Stop sign.  23/09/2015 Stage 2 

63 20464 DOLPHINS BARN (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines 
at 17 terminus stops 1367 and 1380 on 
both sides of Bus Bays. 29/09/2015 Stage 2 

P
age 39



Item SR Road/Street/Avenue 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received SR Status 

64 20551 ISLAND STREET (SC) D8 
Pay & Display & Permit 
Parking (Rescind) 

Double Yellow Lines to replace Pay & 
Display outside the emergency fire 
access to the Viking Harbour apartment 
complex 02/10/2015 Stage 2 

65 20619 RIALTO COTTAGES-SECOND AVE (SC) D8 Traffic Calming 
Avenue Nos. 12-29, just off James's 
Walk. 07/10/2015 Stage 2 

66 20623 KIMMAGE RD WEST (SC) D6W Pedestrian Crossing 
on Kimmage Cross Roads at junction of 
Kimmage Rd West and Terenure Rd. 21/10/2015 Stage 2 

67 20625 HERBERTON RD (SC) D8 Traffic Calming 
on the road between Rialto roundabout 
and Herberton Bridge. 21/10/2015 Stage 2 

68 20626 FERNVALE DRIVE (SC) D12 Double Yellow Lines on the road. 21/10/2015 Stage 2 

69 20674 RIALTO STREET (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines at the entrance to the laneway. 09/10/2015 Stage 2 

70 20703 BULFIN GARDENS (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines for one side of Bulfin Gardens 12/10/2015 Stage 2 

71 20725 GRANGE RD (SC) D6 Bus Cage Marking at stop no 1328. 12/10/2015 Stage 2 

72 20726 GRANGE RD (SC) D6 Double Yellow Lines at bus stop 1328 12/10/2015 Stage 2 

73 20749 BLARNEY PARK (SC) D12 Speed Ramps 

 at dangerous bend  outside No's 75 to 
82 . 
  13/10/2015 Stage 2 

74 20873 LISLE RD (SC) D12 Yield Sign (Rescind) Replace YIELD sign with a STOP sign. 19/10/2015 Stage 2 

75 20927 MOLYNEUX YARD (SC) D8 Parking Prohibition 
along the football pitch side of the 
road.  20/10/2015 Stage 2 

76 20953 ERRIGAL RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction with Drimnagh road, 
outside the Ronald McDonald House  21/10/2015 Stage 2 

77 20961 SAINT JOHN'S RD WEST (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing 

Pedestrian Crossing or Zebra Crossing, 
crossing between Heuston Station and 
the Heuston Luas Bridge. 21/10/2015 Stage 2 

78 21015 INCHICORE TERRACE STH (SC) D8 Children Crossing Sign on the road. 21/10/2015 Stage 2 

79 21016 INCHICORE TERRACE STH (SC) D8 Traffic Calming on the road. 21/10/2015 Stage 2 

80 21017 INCHICORE SQUARE STH (SC) D8 3 Tonne Limit on the road. 21/10/2015 Stage 2 

81 21026 INCHICORE TERRACE STH (SC) D8 3.5 Tonne Limit on the road.  08/09/2015 Stage 2 

82 21045 GRANITE TERRACE (SC) D8 Children Crossing Sign on the road.  08/09/2015 Stage 2 

P
age 40



Item SR Road/Street/Avenue 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received SR Status 

83 21048 GRANITE TERRACE (SC) D8 Traffic Calming on the road.  08/09/2015 Stage 2 

84 21078 KIMMAGE RD WEST (SC) D6W Pedestrian Crossing at slip road onto Kimmage Road West 28/10/2015 Stage 2 

85 21087 SAINT JOHN'S RD WEST (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
Crossing between Hueston Station and 
the Heuston Luas Bridge.  25/10/2015 Stage 2 

86 21102 KEEPER RD (SC) D12 Double Yellow Lines 
on laneway from Keeper Road up to 
the entrance to Drimnagh Boxing Club.  27/10/2015 Stage 2 

87 21216 DRUMFINN RD (SC) D10 
School Warden Crossing 
Box 

at School Warden crossing site for Mary 
Queen of Angels Primary School. 30/10/2015 Stage 2 

88 27627 CLOGHER RD (SC) D12 Children Crossing Sign on the road. 18/11/2015 Stage 2 

89 27629 THOMAS DAVIS STREET WEST (SC) D8 Children Crossing Sign outside Nos. 12/13 and 4/5. 18/11/2015 Stage 2 

90 27646 SUIR RD (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of South Circular Road 
and Bulfin Road.  02/11/2015 Stage 2 

91 27649 STH CIRCULAR RD (SC) D8 Yellow Box outside Memorial Court.  02/11/2015 Stage 2 

92 27661 CLOVERHILL RD (SC) D10 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Cloverhill Road and 
Le Fanu Drive. 18/11/2015 Stage 2 

93 27662 CLOVERHILL RD (SC) D10 Traffic Lights 
at the junction of Cloverhill Road and 
Le Fanu Drive. 18/11/2015 Stage 2 

94 27663 SAINT JOHN'S RD WEST (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
between Heuston Station and the LUAS 
bridge. 18/11/2015 Stage 2 

95 27664 CHERRY ORCHARD AVE (SC) D10 Pedestrian Crossing 
at Tommy's Shop on the corner of 
Croftwood Park. 18/11/2015 Stage 2 

96 27667 CHERRY ORCHARD AVE (SC) D10 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Blackditch Road and 
Cherry Orchard Avenue. 18/11/2015 Stage 2 

97 27675 CLIFDEN DRIVE (SC) D10 Pedestrian Barrier 
at the junction of Clifden Road, Clifden 
Drive, Cherry Orchard Drive. 18/11/2015 Stage 2 

98 27676 CLIFDEN RD (SC) D10 Traffic Calming 
at the junction of Clifden Road and 
Blackditch Road. 18/11/2015 Stage 2 

99 27776 LE FANU RD (SC) D10 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Kylemore Road at 
Kylemore College. 10/11/2015 Stage 2 

100 27824 PARK WEST AVE (SC) D12 Traffic Island 
at the roundabout, towards the Nangor 
Road, on the hotel side of the road. 12/11/2015 Stage 2 

P
age 41



Item SR Road/Street/Avenue 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received SR Status 

101 27961 SAINT JOHN'S RD WEST (SC) D8 Bus Cage Marking 
Extension of bus cage marking by 15 
metres westwards.  20/11/2015 Stage 2 

102 27993 CREMONA RD (SC) D10 Speed Ramps on the road.  19/11/2015 Stage 2 

103 28027 RAFTER'S AVE (SC) D12 Double Yellow Lines at the entrance of the road.  23/11/2015 Stage 2 

104 28044 ROBINSON'S COURT (SC) D7 Pedestrian Crossing 
on Pimlico at the junction with Ardee 
Street and the Coombe 23/11/2015 Stage 2 

105 28103 OLD NAAS RD (SC) D12 Double Yellow Lines 
at the entrance to Vhi HomeCare, 
Waverley Business Park.  24/11/2015 Stage 2 

106 28134 RIALTO COTTAGES-SECOND AVE (SC) D8 Traffic Calming 
Avenue Nos. 12-29, just off James's 
Walk. 29/10/2015 Stage 2 

107 28137 SAINT JOHN'S RD WEST (SC) D8 Electric Car Bay 
The 1st & 2nd space on the outbound 
lane leaving the city. 17/11/2015 Stage 2 

108 28279 CHERRY ORCHARD AVE (SC) D10 Pedestrian Crossing outside St Ultan's School. 09/12/2015 Stage 2 

109 28287 KYLEMORE RD (SC) D12 Yellow Box at the junction of Bluebell Avenue.  02/12/2015 Stage 2 

110 28377 DOLPHIN RD (SC) D12 Children Crossing Sign 
Additional signs near the mini-
roundabout. 08/12/2015 Stage 2 

111 28399 DONARD RD (SC) D12 Children Crossing Sign on the road.  07/12/2015 Stage 2 

112 28401 RAVENSDALE PARK (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Kimmage Road 
Lower.  07/12/2015 Stage 2 

113 28411 SAINT JOHN'S STREET (SC) D8 
Disabled Parking Bay 
(Rescind Residential) outside No.  14.  09/12/2015 Stage 2 

114 28412 SAINT JOHN'S RD WEST (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
between Heuston Station and the Luas 
Bridge.  07/12/2015 Stage 2 

115 28460 KYLEMORE RD (SC) D12 Yellow Box at the junction of Bluebell Avenue. 09/12/2015 Stage 2 

116 28621 CLARENCE MANGAN RD (SC) D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Rescind) 

from the junction with Mill Street 
southwards towards Sweeney's 
Terrace... 
  23/12/2015 Stage 2 

117 28679 PIMLICO (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
Crossing from Pimlico Newsagents to 
The Coombe.  04/01/2016 Stage 2 

118 28695 KYLEMORE DRIVE (SC) D10 Speed Ramps on the road.  05/01/2016 Stage 2 

P
age 42



Item SR Road/Street/Avenue 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received SR Status 

119 28775 KILDARE RD (SC) D12 Parking Prohibition 
'NO PARKING' sign or double yellow 
lines outside No. 52.  08/01/2016 Stage 2 

120 28785 SAINT MARTIN'S PARK (SC) D6W Parking Prohibition at the entrance to St. Martin’s Park. 04/01/2016 Stage 2 

121 28788 DRUMFINN AVE (SC) D10 Yellow Box 
at the junction of Drumfinn Avenue and 
Drumfinn Road 20/01/2016 Stage 2 

122 28790 ISLAND BRIDGE (SC) D8 Speed Ramps 
a ramp or junction plateau (such as at 
the shops on Ballyfermot Road). 20/01/2016 Stage 2 

123 28792 DOLPHIN RD (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines 
at both ends of the green and along 
canal. 20/01/2016 Stage 2 

124 28871 CLOGHER RD (SC) D12 Parking Prohibition 
Restrict parking on Clogher Rd, o/s St. 
Kevin's College. 15/01/2016 Stage 2 

125 28983 THE COOMBE (SC) D8 Yellow Box at the entrance to Swift Hall. 15/01/2016 Stage 2 

126 29031 STH CIRCULAR RD (SC) D8 No Right Turn (Rescind) 

from South Circular Road onto 
Clanbrassil Street Upper.  
  18/01/2016 Stage 2 

127 29073 SAINT JOHN'S RD WEST (SC) D8 Bus Lane 
Request to widen bus lane by 0.5 
metres 20/01/2016 Stage 2 

128 29158 EARL STREET STH (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines 
across the rear entrance to No. 26, 
Hanbury Lane.  26/01/2016 Stage 2 

129 29160 ROTHE ABBEY (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines 
or a yellow box in the turning area 
outside No. 76  26/01/2016 Stage 2 

130 29201 CASHEL AVE (SC) D12 Children Crossing Sign 
on the road, especially at the cul-de-
sac.  01/02/2016 Stage 2 

131 29206 KIMMAGE RD LOWER (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Ravensdale Park.  01/02/2016 Stage 2 

132 29207 OLD NAAS RD (SC) D12 Double Yellow Lines 
at the corners of the gates at the 
entrance to Bluebell Business Park. 01/02/2016 Stage 2 

133 29249 NEAGH RD (SC) D6 Intelligent Traffic Signals 
adjacent to Neagh Road Park 
playground. 02/02/2016 Stage 2 

134 29263 JOHN MCCORMACK AVE (SC) D12 Speed Ramps Request speed ramps on above roads. 03/02/2016 Stage 2 

135 29296 CLOGHER RD (SC) D12 Road Markings 
at the entrance and exit to St. Kevins 
College  29/01/2016 Stage 2 

P
age 43



Item SR Road/Street/Avenue 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received SR Status 

136 29315 CRUMLIN RD (SC) D12 Yellow Box at the junction with Rafters Rd 17/02/2016 Stage 2 

137 29321 WINDMILL AVE (SC) D12 Children Crossing Sign 
On Windmill Ave, Windmill Park and 
Captains Road 17/02/2016 Stage 2 

138 29337 STH CIRCULAR RD (SC) D8 Speed Ramps 
on the laneway at entrance to Bellevue 
Apartments 03/02/2016 Stage 2 

139 29338 STH CIRCULAR RD (SC) D8 Children Crossing Sign 
at pedestrian crossing at St John of 
Gods entrance to Memorial Park 03/02/2016 Stage 2 

140 29412 DONORE AVE (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
at Sally’s Bridge at junction of Donore 
Avenue, Parnell Road, Clogher Rd.  11/01/2016 Stage 2 

141 29455 GURTEEN PARK (SC) D10 Speed Ramps on the road 08/02/2016 Stage 2 

142 29674 STH CIRCULAR RD (SC) D8 3.5 Tonne Limit 
to lane at entrance to Bellevue 
Apartments 02/02/2016 Stage 2 

143 29742 KILWORTH RD (SC) D12 Traffic Calming 

additional Traffic Calming Measures / 
Roundabout at junction of Kilworth 
Road and Cooley Road.  17/02/2016 Stage 2 

144 29743 RAFTER'S AVE (SC) D12 Parking Prohibition on the road 17/02/2016 Stage 2 

145 29748 KYLEMORE RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Long Mile Road.  17/02/2016 Stage 2 

146 29754 COLEPARK DRIVE (SC) D10 Stop Sign 
...or stop line for T junction of Colepark 
Drive with Ballyfermot Road 15/02/2016 Stage 2 

147 29755 USHER'S QUAY (SC) D2 Stop Sign ... or stop line outside petrol station  15/02/2016 Stage 2 

148 30103 ALMEIDA AVE (SC) D8 Speed Ramps 
at each end of the laneway behind 
Lorne Terrace/Almeida Avenue 16/03/2016 Stage 2 

149 30104 ALMEIDA AVE (SC) D8 Children Crossing Sign on the road 16/03/2016 Stage 2 

150 30105 ORANMORE RD (SC) D10 Traffic Calming at the junction with Blackditch Road 16/03/2016 Stage 2 

151 30107 REGINALD STREET (SC) D8 Children Crossing Sign on the street 16/03/2016 Stage 2 

152 30150 SAINT ANTHONY'S RD (SC) D8 Caution Children Sign 
particularly at top of road near the 
pitch. 08/03/2016 Stage 2 

153 30175 SPERRIN RD (SC) D12 School Ahead Sign Near Our Lady of Good Counsel School 16/03/2016 Stage 2 

154 30229 KYLEMORE RD (SC) D10 Yellow Box 
at the entry/exits to the service roads 
in Ballyfermot see map  16/03/2016 Stage 2 

155 30261 INNISMORE (SC) D12 Traffic Calming in the estate, esp’y at sharp bend. 11/03/2016 Stage 2 

P
age 44



Item SR Road/Street/Avenue 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received SR Status 

156 30326 SAINT ANTHONY'S RD (SC) D8 Children Crossing Sign 

particularly at top of road near the 
pitch (previous request sent in under 
SR 30150). 16/03/2016 Stage 2 

157 30393 MARTIN'S ROW (SC) D20 One-Way System 
Request to make above road one-way 
system 21/03/2016 Stage 2 

158 30394 MARTIN'S ROW (SC) D20 Traffic Calming on Knockmaroon Hill Chapelizod D20 21/03/2016 Stage 2 

159 30491 OLD NAAS RD (SC) D12 Double Yellow Lines 

On the west side of the entrance and 
opposite the entrance to Bluebell 
Business Park and Bluebell Business 
Centre 09/02/2016 Stage 2 

160 30561 HUBAND RD (SC) D12 
Disabled Parking Bay 
(Rescind Residential) Outside No. 29. 04/04/2016 Stage 2 

161 30563 DRIMNAGH RD (SC) D12 3.5 Tonne Limit 
on the laneway to the rear of Nos. 121-
171, Drimnagh Road 04/04/2016 Stage 2 

162 30593 KYLEMORE RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Naas Road.  17/02/2016 Stage 2 

163 30819 BALLYFERMOT RD (SC) D10 Bus Stop Approvals 
Bus stop to be reinstated outside 
Cherry Orchard Hospital   15/04/2016 Stage 2 

164 30820 BIGGER RD (SC) D12 Stop Sign to replace yield signs  08/04/2016 Stage 2 

165 31136 STH CIRCULAR RD (SC) D8 No Left Turn 
from South Circular Road onto Church 
Avenue South, during morning peak.  29/04/2016 Stage 2 

166 31167 HANBURY LANE (SC) D2 
Disabled Parking Bay 
(General) 

in the vicinity of Thomas Court Primary 
Care Centre.  05/05/2016 Stage 2 

167 31232 TERENURE RD NORTH (SC) D6W Traffic Calming above road no.15-17 10/05/2016 Stage 2 

168 31261 STH CIRCULAR RD (SC) D8 Bus Stop Marking 
at Dublin Bus Stop No. 1385 opposite 
Griffith College. 06/05/2016 Stage 2 

169 31262 KEEPER RD (SC) D12 Bus Stop Marking at Dublin Bus Stop No. 1434. 06/05/2016 Stage 2 

170 31279 RING STREET (SC) D8 Traffic Calming ramps on the road 18/05/2016 Stage 2 

171 31399 ISLAND STREET (SC) D8 Yellow Box  at the exit of warehouse (No.14)  18/05/2016 Stage 2 

172 31504 DRIMNAGH RD (SC) D12 Double Yellow Lines on laneway to the rear of Nos. 121-171.  04/04/2016 Stage 2 

P
age 45



Item SR Road/Street/Avenue 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received SR Status 

173 31551 CON COLBERT RD (SC) D8 School Ahead Sign 

School Ahead or School Crossing sign 
requested at junction for Ballyfermot 
  25/05/2016 Stage 2 

174 31735 WALKINSTOWN GREEN (SC) D15 Double Yellow Lines at the shops near the park. roundabout 02/06/2016 Stage 2 

175 31978 PIMLICO (SC) D8 3 Tonne Limit on the street 14/06/2016 Stage 2 

176 32106 STH CIRCULAR RD (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines 
On South Circular Road at the junction 
of Dufferin Avenue.  13/06/2016 Stage 2 

177 32244 RING STREET (SC) D8 Traffic Calming Traffic calming measures on above road 21/06/2016 Stage 2 

178 32335 SAINT JOHN'S STREET (SC) D8 
Disabled Parking Bay 
(Rescind Residential) Outside number 14 24/06/2016 Stage 2 

179 32437 NEW ROW STH (SC) D8 
Disabled Parking Bay 
(Residential) 

outside No. 5, Lauderdale Terrace, 
New Row South. Pay and Display and 
Permit Parking would be rescinded. 01/07/2016 Stage 2 

180 32607 STH CIRCULAR RD (SC) D8 No Left Turn 
From South Circular Road onto 
Haroldville Ave, during morning peak.   28/06/2016 Stage 2 

181 32929 SAINT JOHN'S RD WEST (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
Additional pedestrian crossings for the 
Heuston Station area. 22/07/2016 Stage 2 

182 32952 TYRCONNELL RD (SC) D8 Single Yellow Line 
single/double yellow lines along the 
non-recessed area o/s Tesco Express. 25/07/2016 Stage 2 

183 33056 DONORE RD (SC) D8 
Disabled Parking Bay 
(Rescind Residential) outside No. 13. 02/08/2016 Stage 2 

184 33279 RAVENSDALE DRIVE (SC) D12 Children Crossing Sign on the road.  15/08/2016 Stage 2 

185 33280 RAVENSDALE DRIVE (SC) D12 Speed Ramps 
speed ramps (and/or children 
crossing sign).  16/08/2016 Stage 2 

186 33352 ROTHE ABBEY (SC) D8 Traffic Calming 
Caution Children sign or other 
measures for traffic calming  22/08/2016 Stage 2 

187 33355 PARNELL RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Clogher Road and 
Donore Avenue.  29/07/2016 Stage 2 

188 33356 SLIEVENAMON RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Dolphin Road and 
Grand Canal View.  29/07/2016 Stage 2 

P
age 46



Item SR Road/Street/Avenue 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received SR Status 

189 33372 SLIEVENAMON RD (SC) D12 Double Yellow Lines 

1) On Slievenamon Rd from the 
roundabout at Galtymore 
Rd/Slievenamon Rd to the first set of 
ramps northbound towards the Grand 
Canal; and 
2) on Slievenamon Rd on the approach 
northbound to the junction of 
Slievenamon Rd /Davitt Rd. 24/08/2016 Stage 2 

190 33374 KILDARE RD (SC) D12 Traffic Lights at the junction of Clonard Road.  24/08/2016 Stage 2 

191 33508 GURTEEN AVE (SC) D10 Traffic Calming 
request for additional traffic 
calming measures.  30/08/2016 Stage 2 

192 33521 TURVEY AVE (SC) D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) 

to the first parking space on the left 
hand side entering the road.  19/08/2016 Stage 2 

193 33533 BASIN STREET UPPER (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines 
opposite the entrance to the Haven 
Adult Education Centre. 31/08/2016 Stage 2 

194 33563 EMMET RD (SC) D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Rescind) outside 124F The Starter Centre. 02/09/2016 Stage 2 

195 33624 CASHEL AVE (SC) D12 
Disabled Parking Bay 
(Residential) outside No. 112. 07/09/2016 Stage 2 

196 33649 GURTEEN AVE (SC) D10 Traffic Calming 
Extra traffic calming measures for 
above road 07/09/2016 Stage 2 

197 33667 CLOGHER RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Parnell Road and 
Donore Avenue.  08/09/2016 Stage 2 

198 33725 BROOKFIELD RD (SC) D8 
Pay & Display & Permit 
Parking (change of hours) 

for extension of operational hours.  
  12/09/2016 Stage 2 

199 33785 TYRCONNELL RD (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines  o/s Tesco Express shop 12/09/2016 Stage 2 

200 33789 WALLACE RD (SC) D12 Stop Sign STOP sign for above roads 12/09/2016 Stage 2 

P
age 47



Item SR Road/Street/Avenue 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received SR Status 

201 33883 CLONARD RD (SC) D12 Double Yellow Lines 

Problem with parked cars due to a 
neighbour running a car business from 
his house causing problems for other 
residents.  15/09/2016 Stage 2 

202 33996 CONNOLLY AVE (SC) D8 Stop Sign 
Stop or Yield sign at  junction with 
Bulfin Rd 21/09/2016 Stage 2 

203 34080 GURTEEN AVE (SC) D10 Speed Ramps extra ramps on the road 21/09/2016 Stage 2 

204 34082 GURTEEN AVE (SC) D10 Speed Ramps extra ramp on the road 21/09/2016 Stage 2 

205 34085 CHERRY ORCHARD AVE (SC) D10 Traffic Calming 

requests chicane or ramps or some sort 
of traffic calming measures on above 
road. 24/09/2016 Stage 2 

206 34272 GURTEEN AVE (SC) D10 Children Crossing Sign on the road.  30/08/2016 Stage 2 

207 29818 REHOBOTH PLACE (SC) D8 
Pay & Display & Permit 
Parking on the road.  18/02/2016 Stage 3 

208 31363 REHOBOTH AVE (SC) D8 
Pay & Display & Permit 
Parking on the road.  13/05/2016 Stage 3 

209 12249 JOHN DILLON STREET (SC) D8 Yellow Box Outside St. Francis CBS. 09/05/2014 Stage 4 

210 12251 JOHN DILLON STREET (SC) D8 School Ahead Sign 
On Thomas Davis Street South and John 
Dillon Street. 09/05/2014 Stage 4 

211 12638 BRIDGEFOOT STREET (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
Across Bridgefoot Street at Usher's 
Quay. 28/05/2014 Stage 4 

212 12897 LEIGHLIN RD (SC) D12 Traffic Calming on the road. 16/07/2014 Stage 4 

213 12989 STH CIRCULAR RD (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing outside the Dublin Mosque, No. 165. 27/06/2014 Stage 4 

214 14722 SAINT AGNES RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
From Rockmead Court Senior Citizens 
Complex to the shops. 17/10/2014 Stage 4 

215 16937 DOLPHIN RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
for junction at Rialto Bridge/Herberton 
Rd/Dolphin Rd. 26/02/2015 Stage 4 

216 17398 CHAPELIZOD RD (SC) D20 
Pay & Display & Permit 
Parking at Mullingar Terrace. 31/03/2015 Stage 4 

P
age 48



Item SR Road/Street/Avenue 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received SR Status 

217 17729 SAINT MARY'S RD (SC) D12 Traffic Lights 
 turning left from St. Mary's Road to St. 
Agnes' Road  15/04/2015 Stage 4 

218 18499 KYLEMORE WAY (SC) D8 Speed Ramps on the road. 04/06/2015 Stage 4 

219 18599 COOLEY RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Cooley Road and 
Crumlin Road. 10/06/2015 Stage 4 

220 18886 STH CIRCULAR RD (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing at Leonards corner on SCR. 25/06/2015 Stage 4 

221 19713 BRIDGE STREET LOWER (SC) D8 Engineer Query 

Erect bollards every 10 meters on 
approach from Bridge St Lower to 
Ushers Quay to segregate left hand 
turning lane. 18/08/2015 Stage 4 

222 20014 RAFTERS RD (SC) D12 Double Yellow Lines 
on Rafters Road at the junction with 
Rafters Lane. 04/09/2015 Stage 4 

223 20126 RAFTERS RD (SC) D12 Double Yellow Lines 
where it leads onto Crumlin Rd.        
Also a continuous white line on same. 14/09/2015 Stage 4 

224 20197 RAFTERS RD (SC) D12 Double Yellow Lines 
at the junction of Rafters Road and 
Crumlin Road. 16/09/2015 Stage 4 

225 20616 THOMAS DAVIS STREET WEST (SC) D8 
Disabled Parking Bay 
(Residential) 

outside No. 23; Pay & Display & Permit 
Parking would be rescinded.  06/10/2015 Stage 4 

226 20617 CLADDAGH GREEN (SC) D10 
Pay & Display & Permit 
Parking 

for extra parking between St Mary's 
Youth Club and Claddagh Court older 
persons complex 06/10/2015 Stage 4 

227 28935 MILITARY RD (SC) D8 3.5 Tonne Limit 
On Military Road at the junction of St. 
John's Road West. 18/01/2016 Stage 4 

228 29074 CLADDAGH GREEN (SC) D10 Pedestrian Crossing 
near Claddagh Court and the local 
shops.  25/01/2016 Stage 4 

229 29120 CON COLBERT RD (SC) D10 Traffic Calming along the road 21/01/2016 Stage 4 

230 29264 JOHN MCCORMACK AVE (SC) D12 Parking Prohibition 

Request impediment to stop cars 
parking on footpaths/parking 
restriction measures. 03/02/2016 Stage 4 

231 29530 KYLEMORE RD (SC) D12 Right Turn Filter Light 
from Kylemore Road onto Old Naas 
Road.  09/02/2016 Stage 4 

P
age 49



Item SR Road/Street/Avenue 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received SR Status 

232 29745 RAFTER'S AVE (SC) D12 Children Crossing Sign on the road.  17/02/2016 Stage 4 

233 30033 RAFTER'S AVE (SC) D12 Double Yellow Lines 

at the junction of Rafters Avenue and 
Rafters Road and on Rafters Road to 
the junction of Crumlin Road.   02/03/2016 Stage 4 

234 30106 RAFTERS LANE (SC) D12 Double Yellow Lines at entrance to lane 16/03/2016 Stage 4 

235 30163 REGINALD STREET (SC) D8 Children Crossing Sign at Reginald Street / Gray Street.  07/03/2016 Stage 4 

236 30168 RAFTERS RD (SC) D12 Children Crossing Sign Between Nos. 90-120. 07/03/2016 Stage 4 

237 30747 OLD KILMAINHAM (SC) D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) up to Lady’s Lane.   13/04/2016 Stage 4 

238 30755 KEEPER RD (SC) D12 Speed Ramps 
or for a more effective Speed 
Ramp outside No. 264.   13/04/2016 Stage 4 

239 31166 BOW LANE WEST (SC) D8 3.5 Tonne Limit on the road. 05/05/2016 Stage 4 

240 31222 TYRCONNELL PARK (SC) D8 Children Crossing Sign 
for both ends of the road and at 
entrance to the cul de sac. 09/05/2016 Stage 4 

241 31263 STANNAWAY AVE (SC) D12 Double Yellow Lines 
on the corners and at terminus to allow 
bus access. 03/05/2016 Stage 4 

242 31398 KILMAINHAM LANE (SC) D8 
Disabled Parking Bay 
(Residential) 

Outside No. 23.  Pay and Display and 
Permit Parking would be rescinded.  18/05/2016 Stage 4 

243 31546 TYRCONNELL PARK (SC) D8 Children Crossing Sign at both entrances to Tyrconnell Park 24/05/2016 Stage 4 

244 31602 HERBERTON RD (SC) D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) 

on Herberton Road at the junction of 
New Ireland Road.  20/05/2016 Stage 4 

245 31939 MOURNE RD (SC) D12 
Disabled Parking Bay 
(Residential) outside No. 174.  13/06/2016 Stage 4 

246 31940 OLD KILMAINHAM (SC) D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) on above road 13/06/2016 Stage 4 

247 32342 HIGH STREET (SC) D8 Engineer Query 

Bollards to segregate middle lane or 
alternatively erect clear signage to 
support road markings 23/06/2016 Stage 4 

248 32348 PATRICK STREET (SC) D8 Yellow Box 
Junction congested with traffic blocking 
it 24/06/2016 Stage 4 

P
age 50



Item SR Road/Street/Avenue 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received SR Status 

249 32374 RING STREET (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines on the four corners of the junction. 21/06/2016 Stage 4 

250 32820 SLIEVEBLOOM RD (SC) D12 Yellow Box 
Yellow box requested at entrance to 
Landsdowne Valley Apartments. 18/07/2016 Stage 4 

251 33212 OLD KILMAINHAM (SC) D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) request to extend DYLs  10/08/2016 Stage 4 

252 33216 OLD KILMAINHAM (SC) D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) request to extend DYLs 11/08/2016 Stage 4 

253 33218 GRAND CANAL PLACE (SC) D8 Coach Parking 
Provision of 2 coach parking bays and 
rescindment of pay and display parking.  22/07/2016 Stage 4 

254 33263 LOUGH CONN RD (SC) D10 Speed Ramps request for ramps  15/08/2016 Stage 4 

255 33305 JOHN DILLON STREET (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines on above junction 17/08/2016 Stage 4 

256 33472 STANNAWAY AVE (SC) D12 Bus Cage Marking on the road. 23/08/2016 Stage 4 

257 34036 BARNVILLE PARK (SC) D10 Speed Ramps  At entrance to estate 22/09/2016 Stage 4 

258 34079 WINDMILL RD (SC) D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
on Windmill Road at the junction with 
Crumlin Village. 21/09/2016 Stage 4 

259 34138 KEEPER RD (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines 

at the junction of Keeper Road and 
Slievenamon Road. 
  
  27/09/2016 Stage 4 

260 34140 KEEPER RD (SC)   Stop Sign STOP LINE/MARKING 04/10/2016 Stage 4 

261 34193 BALLYFERMOT RD (SC) D10 
School Warden Crossing 
Box outside St.Gabriels School. 30/09/2016 Stage 4 

262 34222 WINDMILL AVE (SC) D12 Speed Ramps on the road.  29/09/2016 Stage 4 

263 34284 CLADDAGH GREEN (SC) D10 Yellow Box on the road. 12/10/2016 Stage 4 

264 11895 OLIVER BOND STREET (SC) D8 Engineer Query 
Request for a traffic island in the 
middle of the crossing.  22/04/2014 Stage 5 

265 15014 MEATH STREET (SC) D8 Pay & Display Parking 
Reps to rescind Loading Bays and 
install Pay and Display Parking. 05/11/2014 Stage 5 

266 16527 CHURCH AVE STH (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines at the junction of South Circular Road. 05/02/2015 Stage 5 

267 17122 CHURCH AVE STH (SC) D8 
Pay & Display & Permit 
Parking on the road. 10/03/2015 Stage 5 

P
age 51



Item SR Road/Street/Avenue 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received SR Status 

268 17408 REUBEN STREET (SC) D8 
Continuous White Line 
(Extend) 

Northern end of Reuben Street with its 
junction at James's Street. 
  01/04/2015 Stage 5 

269 17481 WINETAVERN STREET (SC) D2 Pedestrian Crossing at Christ Church 13/04/2015 Stage 5 

270 17777 KYLEMORE DRIVE (SC) D10 Traffic Calming on the road. 22/04/2015 Stage 5 

271 17920 BLACKDITCH RD (SC) D10 No Parking Request for 2 NO PARKING signs. 30/04/2015 Stage 5 

272 18175 BRAITHWAITE STREET (SC) D8 Engineer Query 

Request from Sth Cntl Area Office for 
DYL’s outside the vehicular access gates 
to the allotments at Braithwaite Street 
and Weaver Square.  15/05/2015 Stage 5 

273 19412 WINETAVERN STREET (SC) D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
at junction of Winetavern St, High St, & 
Nicholas St on the Christchurch side. 28/07/2015 Stage 5 

274 19473 NASH STREET (SC) D8 
Disabled Parking Bay 
(Residential) outside No. 64. 04/08/2015 Stage 5 

275 20477 STH CIRCULAR RD (SC) D8 
Disabled Parking Bay 
(Residential) 

adjacent to No.684, South Circular 
Road, Kilmainham. 30/09/2015 Stage 5 

276 20632 RIALTO COURT (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines 

On Rialto Cottages, Rialto Court at end 
parallel to James's Walk, and around 
Rialto Court buildings. 
  07/10/2015 Stage 5 

277 20800 JAMES'S STREET (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines outside No. 42a Allen's Garage. 14/10/2015 Stage 5 

278 30000 MILITARY RD (SC) D8 Car Club Bay 

Request from Go Car car sharing to 
have a bay at the current Tourist Bay 
adjacent to the Dublin Bikes Stand. 29/02/2016 Stage 5 

279 30001 INCHICORE RD (SC) D8 Car Club Bay 
Request to have a GoCar car sharing 
parking bay at Kilmainham Gaol.  29/02/2016 Stage 5 

280 31000 GRATTAN CRESCENT (SC) D8 Double Yellow Lines 
as part of Bus Time Improvements for 
route No. 40. 25/04/2016 Stage 5 

281 31843 STH CIRCULAR RD (SC) D8 Yellow Box at Mannions DIY Shop. 08/06/2016 Stage 5 

282 32023 CRUMLIN RD (SC) D12 Electric Car Bay 
Opposite First Stop Tyres beside 
Crumlin shopping Centre. 16/06/2016 Stage 5 

P
age 52



 

P
age 53





 

South Central Area Office,  
Eblana Hoiuse, 

Marrowbone Lane, 
Dublin 8. 

 
 
 

The Chairperson and Members  
South Central Area Committee. 

 

 

 

Report recommending the adoption of a pilot scheme for Choice Based Lettings in 
Tyrone Place (Inchicore), Bernard Curtis House, Bluebell Road and Huband Road 

(Bluebell) 
 

Introduction 
The Housing Miscellaneous Provisions Act 2009 gives Local Authorities powers to include a 
system of Choice Based lettings in their Allocation Scheme. Choice Based lettings is widely 
used in the U.K and is particularly successful in areas with units which prove difficult to let.  It 
is widely accepted that some of Dublin City Council’s housing stock is located in less 
desirable areas.  Over the years the Area Housing Managers have regularly raised the issue 
of the difficulty in allocating units in these less desirable estates.  When vacancies arise in 
these areas strict adherence to current allocations process can be very lengthy.  Long term 
vacant properties are easy to identify and pose a higher risk of being vandalised and in 
some cases can put adjacent houses and families at risk to the same vandals.  There is also 
a loss of revenue to the Council. 
 
It is proposed to introduce choice based lettings on a pilot basis in two areas, one complex in 
Inchicore (Tyrone Place) and three complexes in Bluebell (Bernard Curtis House, Bluebell 
Road and Huband Road). These areas have been identified as areas with very high refusal 
rates. Vacancies in these complexes have been offered out in accordance with the Scheme 
of Priorities but are constantly being refused by those applicants near the top of the list.  If a 
choice based lettings had been used in these cases and persons had been invited to 
express their interest these units could have been allocated much more quickly. 
 
Advantages of Choice Based Lettings. 

 It empowers people to make decisions over where they live and exercises  
                  choice. 

 Helps create sustainable communities and encourages the effective use of  
                  Council stock 

 Reduce the amount of anti-social behaviour in the area. 
 Allows a certain amount of choice to applicants who may be in lower position  

                  on the list and would not be reached under the present Allocations Scheme  
                  but would be happy to reside in these areas. 

 Reduces the lengthy allocations process. 
 Properties can be allocated quickly, thus minimising the loss of revenue   

                  through rent. 
 

Page 55



 
 
CHIOCE BASED ALLOCATIONS 
 
Procedure Proposed  

 Properties that become available for re-let in the above named  
                  complexes will be advertised in the Local Area Office and clinics. 

 Expressions of interest will be invited and applicants will be asked to  
                  register their interest with the Area Housing Manager or Project Estate  
                  Officer in the relevant local area office.    

 There will be a timeframe for applicants to register their interest.    
 If a number of applicants express an interest in the same property, the  

                  final offer will be to the applicant deemed to have the highest need  
                  (highest position on the list and most suitable family size). 

 All offers of accommodation will be subject to the usual estate  
                  management checks. 

 In the case of transfer applicants only tenants with a clear rent  
                  account will be considered.   

 
I I request that the members of the South Central Area Committee approve the introduction 
of a pilot system for choice based lettings in Inchicore and Bluebell, as listed above. 
. 
 
 
 

 
Peter Finnegan 
Area Manager 
 
 

Page 56



South Central Area Office,  
Eblana Hoiuse, 

Marrowbone Lane, 
Dublin 8. 

 
 
 

The Chairperson and Members  
South Central Area Committee. 
 

 
Proposal to extinguish the Public Right of Way over a stretch of roadway at Borris 
Court, Dublin 8 
 

 
 

Proposal 
The South Central Area Committee, at its meeting on the 21st September 2016, agreed to 
initiate the statutory procedures to extinguish the public right of way over a stretch of 
roadway at Borris Court, Dublin 8. This is to facilitate the erection of lockable gates at either 
end of Borris Court. The extent of the proposed extinguishment is shown on the attached 
Drawing R.M 36604. 

 
Statutory Requirement 
By public advertisement (Irish Times) on the 27th September 2016. Representations or 
objections were invited by the 8th November 2016, and 2 site notices were erected at the 
location.  
 
Objections 
No formal objections were received by close of business on 8th November 2016. 
 
Service Check 
Service providers have been informed of this proposal and their requirements will be 
facilitated.  

 
Recommendation   
I recommend that this Committee approve of the extinguishment of the public right of way 
over the area shown on drawing R.M.36604 for consideration later by the City Council. The 
extinguishment of a public right of way is a function reserved for the City Council. 

 
 
 

Peter Finnegan 
Area Manager 
 

 

Page 57





South Central Area Office,  
Eblana Hoiuse, 

Marrowbone Lane, 
Dublin 8. 

 
The Chairperson and Members  
South Central Area Committee. 

 
 

Report on Halloween clean up in the South Central Area 
 

The South Central Area Office provided a coordinated approach across a number of different 
units in the lead up to and during the Halloween period. In the week leading up to 
Halloween, our Public Domain Unit (PDU) and Housing staff actively built up intelligence and 
information concerning the stockpiling of material across the area. On Wednesday 28th 
October, the PDU began collecting materials using one truck while on Friday 30th October, 
two trucks were used. During both days, assistance was provided by the Public Order Unit of 
An Garda Síochána. A significant haul of materials containing hundreds of pallets and tyres 
was located on 30th October in an abandoned warehouse in the Dublin 8 area. 
 
Over the weekend (Saturday, 29th to Monday 31st) , Area Housing Managers, Project Estate 
Officers, the Public Domain Unit and Area Office staff kept in regular contact with each other 
in order to identify areas of concern and to facilitate the removal of bonfire materials. They 
also liaised closely with staff from Housing, Waste Management, Parks and Dangerous 
Buildings as well as An Garda Síochána. 
 
Private waste contractors along with staff from Parks and Waste Management assisted in 
the removal of bonfire materials. Although the exact amount of materials taken away over 
the Halloween period is still being calculated, the figures below detail some of the materials 
removed. 
 

Tyres Pallets Built Bonfires 

2,100 2,500 3 

 
It is estimated that 150 tonnes of waste and bonfire material was removed over the 
Halloween period by Public Domain staff from South Central Area which significantly 
reduced the potential for substantial bonfires to occur in the area. 
 
The greatest volume of collected bonfire materials came from the following locations: - 

 Derelict private site at Bridgefoot Street Lower, (6 Trucks filled plus 1 Bin  
            Lorry) 

 Derelict private site at Grand Canal Place (14 Trucks plus 2 Bin Lorries) 

 Derelict private site at Davitt Road, (15 Trucks + 1 Bin Lorry) 

 St. Teresa's Gardens (5 Trucks) 

 Liffey Gaels GAA pitches/Nature reserve in Memorial Gardens (2 Trucks/Only  
            Tyres)   
 

 
 
 
Peter Finnegan 
Area Manager 

 

Page 59





South Central Area Office, 
            Eblana House 

            Marrowbone Lane, 
          Dublin 8. 

The Chairperson and Members  
South Central Area Committee 
 
 

 
Schedule for Lighting of Christmas Trees in the South Central Area, 

Christmas 2016. 
 

 
 
 

 
DAY 

 
DATE 

 
TIME 

 
LOCATION 

Monday 
 

21/11/16 6.00pm Bluebell 
At the area adjacent to Bluebell LUAS stop. Refreshments 
afterwards in the foyer of Our Lady of the Wayside Church. 

Monday 
 

28/11/16 4.45 pm Dolphin’s Barn Church 
Refreshments afterwards In Dolphin’s Barn Church 

Tuesday 29/11/16 6.00 pm Inchicore 
Outside Golden Soles Shoes formally The Bank of Ireland, 
Tyrconnell Road. 
Refreshments afterwards in the Black Lion, Inchicore. 

Wednesday 30/11/16 6.00 pm Cornmarket. 
Refreshments afterwards at St. Audoen’s School. 

Thursday 1/12/16 6.00 pm Ballyfermot Community Civic Centre. 
Refreshments served afterwards in the Atrium. 

Saturday 3/12/16 7.15-7.20pm  
(approx.) 

Our Lady of Good Counsel Church, Mourne Road, 
Drimnagh.  (after 6.30pm mass) (No refreshments) 

Tuesday 6/12/16 6.00 pm Church of the Most Holy Sacrament Cherry Orchard. 
Refreshments served afterwards in St. Ultan’s School. 

Wednesday 7/12/16 5.00pm Outside Crumlin Village Garda Station 
Refreshments served afterwards, St. Agnes’ Parish Centre. 

Thursday 8/12/16 6.00 pm Landen / Lally Roads Roundabout Lower Ballyfermot 
(no official switch on ceremony this year- tree will be lit from 
the 8th December) 

Thursday 8/12/16 7.00 pm The Plaza, Chapelizod Village 
Refreshments served afterwards in the Band Room. 

 
 
 
 
Peter Finnegan 
Area Manager 

 

Page 61





DCC DRAINAGE DIVISION Gully Cleaning Program  

 
  

Daily Returns Statistics For - All Areas In The South Central Area, All Machines, All Operators, October 2016  

  

Total 
Inspected:   491               

Total Cleaned:   383               

Total 
Omissions:   8               

Total Repairs 
Noted:   58               

Total Street 
Visits:   135               

  

Insp.=Inspected, Cl.=Cleaned, Om.=Omissions, Rep.=Repairs, M/V=Machine/Van, MDN=Machine Digging Needed, HDN=Hand DiggingNeeded, OSP= 
On-StreetParking, TS= TrafficSensitive 

  

Date  Area  Street  Insp. Cl. Om. Rep.  M/V Comments 

27/10/2016 31 CON COLBERT ROAD PL side of l/s 6 2 2 0 0 GV 1   

14/10/2016 31 INCHICORE ROAD 0 0 0 0 SV 3 Marathon route. No flooding 

17/10/2016 31 LIFFEY STREET SOUTH 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH 

new gully 

,HDN 

07/10/2016 31 LYNCH'S LANE 2 2 0 0 GCCTV 
Cctv-2 streaches complete T/D 29, 51 

m 

03/10/2016 31 PARK STREET 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH HDN 

17/10/2016 31 PARK STREET 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH 

new gully 

,HDN 

12/10/2016 31 PARK STREET 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH HDN 

11/10/2016 31 PHOENIX STREET WEST 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH HDN 

11/10/2016 31 PHOENIX STREET WEST 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH HDN 

P
age 63

javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl0','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl1','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl2','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl3','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl4','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl5','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl6','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl7','')
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169198
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169198
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168556
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168556
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168646
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168646
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168276
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168276
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168023
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168023
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168645
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168645
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168454
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168454
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168340
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168340
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168341
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168341


11/10/2016 31 PHOENIX STREET WEST 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH HDN 

07/10/2016 31 PHOENIX STREET WEST 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH HDN 

10/10/2016 31 PHOENIX STREET WEST 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH HDN 

14/10/2016 31 SAINT LAURENCE ROAD 0 0 0 0 SV 3 Marathon route. No Flooding 

03/10/2016 31 SAINT MARYS AVENUE WEST 1 0 0 1 MAINT STH Gully for Exchange 

18/10/2016 31 SAINT MARYS AVENUE WEST 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH HDN 

27/10/2016 31 SARSFIELD RD PL under bridge 5 5 0 0 GV 1   

14/10/2016 31 SARSFIELD ROAD 0 0 0 0 SV 3 Marathon route. No flooding 

05/10/2016 32 BRIDGE ST LWR PL @ loading bay & o'sheas 3 3 0 0 GV 1   

27/10/2016 32 COOK ST PL @ needle exchange 2 2 0 0 GV 1   

20/10/2016 32 HEUSTON BRIDGE NTH PL @ bike rack 3 3 0 0 GV 1   

06/10/2016 32 HEUSTON BRIDGE NTH PL @ bike rack 3 3 0 0 GV 1   

27/10/2016 32 HIGH ST PL from nicholas st X 5 gullies 5 5 0 0 GV 1   

07/10/2016 32 LADY'S LANE PL all gullies 4 4 0 0 GV 1   

26/10/2016 32 MILITARY ROAD 1 1 0 1 GCCJ 2 
Minijet , at jcn of st johns rd, 

brokedown, cctv done 

18/10/2016 32 MILITARY ROAD 2 0 0 0 CV 

@juc johns rd west will 

,TS 

19/10/2016 32 MILITARY ROAD 1 1 0 1 GM 4 Early morning road finished 

19/10/2016 32 MILITARY ROAD 6 6 0 3 CV @juc st johns rd west 

26/10/2016 32 MOUNT BROWN PL @ bike rack 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

26/10/2016 32 MOUNT BROWN PL all gullies 12 12 0 0 GV 1   

26/10/2016 32 OLIVER BOND STREET PL @ bike rack 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

06/10/2016 32 OLIVER BOND STREET PL @ bike rack 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

20/10/2016 32 S C Rd inchicorerd-conyinghamrd PL @ 757 2 2 0 0 GV 1   

19/10/2016 32 SAINT JOHNS ROAD WEST 8 8 0 3 GM 4 Early morning road finished 

P
age 64

http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168399
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168399
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168253
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168253
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168302
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168302
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168554
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168554
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168076
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168076
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168711
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168711
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169199
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169199
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168555
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168555
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168190
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168190
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169202
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169202
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168877
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168877
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168248
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168248
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169203
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169203
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168285
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168285
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169107
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169107
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168757
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168757
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168788
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168788
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168805
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168805
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169150
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169150
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169149
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169149
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169151
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169151
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168247
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168247
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168878
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168878
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168787
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168787


27/10/2016 32 SAINT JOHNS ROAD WEST 1 1 0 1 GCCJ 2 
Minijet, at l/s 12 at e.s.b station. 

Brokedown, cctv done 

09/10/2016 32 SAINT JOHNS ROAD WEST 42 42 0 8 GCCV 1 Rd finished 

09/10/2016 32 SAINT JOHNS ROAD WEST 38 38 0 3 GM 2   

09/10/2016 32 SAINT JOHNS ROAD WEST 40 0 0 0 CV C/vn - used auger on30 

09/10/2016 32 SAINT JOHNS ROAD WEST 45 0 0 0 CV C/van - used auger on 40 

14/10/2016 32 SAINT JOHNS ROAD WEST 1 0 0 1 AGMan 

FLOODING NEAR L/S 36 REPORTED TO 
AG / CF - WATER COMING OUT OF 

GULLIES MAIN CHOKE 

13/10/2016 32 SAINT JOHNS ROAD WEST 17 16 1 7 GM 4 Early morning and normal time 

12/10/2016 32 SAINT JOHNS ROAD WEST 22 22 0 5 GM 4 Side of road finished 

12/10/2016 32 SAINT JOHNS ROAD WEST 22 22 0 0 GV 1   

09/10/2016 32 ST JOHNS RD WEST OUTBOUND R/ABOUT 5 5 0 0 GCCV 1 WORKED FROM PATH - INSIDE 

24/10/2016 32 USHER ST PL @ & opp flats 2 2 0 0 GV 1   

13/10/2016 32 VICTORIA QUAY 0 0 0 0 CV To meet roy to discuss a job 

26/10/2016 46 O'CURRY ROAD 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH HDN 

26/10/2016 47 BROOKFIELD ROAD PL @ bike rack 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

04/10/2016 47 BROOKFIELD ROAD PL @ bike rack 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

20/10/2016 47 CORNMARKET PL @ spar 1 1 0 1 GCCJ 2 
Minijet, at spar, taking water but 

possible main holding water, cctv done 

06/10/2016 47 DEAN ST PL new st sth-lukes ave 8 8 0 0 GV 1   

26/10/2016 47 ECHLIN STREET 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH HDN 

24/10/2016 47 FRANCIS ST PL @ jcn thomas st 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

24/10/2016 47 FRANCIS STREET PL @ bike rack 2 2 0 0 GV 1   

05/10/2016 47 FRANCIS STREET PL @ bike rack 2 2 0 0 GV 1   

04/10/2016 47 JAMES'S ST PL @ lights opp watling st 2 2 0 0 GV 1   

04/10/2016 47 JAMES'S ST PL @ post office 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

04/10/2016 47 JAMES'S ST PL opp post office 4 4 0 0 GV 1   

10/10/2016 47 MARROWBONE LANE 0 0 0 0 SV 2 
Went over to collect van had to go back 

to bannow for shovel 

P
age 65

http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169172
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169172
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168294
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168294
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168298
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168298
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168300
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168300
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168301
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168301
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168611
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168611
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168465
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168465
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168400
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168400
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168441
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168441
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168299
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168299
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168979
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168979
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168482
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168482
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169078
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169078
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169148
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169148
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168134
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168134
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168866
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168866
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168241
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168241
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169077
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169077
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169006
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169006
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169007
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169007
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168192
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168192
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168130
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168130
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168132
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168132
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168131
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168131
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168322
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168322


20/10/2016 47 MARROWBONE LANE 0 0 0 0 SV 2 Van check 

19/10/2016 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GM 4 Checked gm1 not ready for use 

19/10/2016 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 2 Van check 

24/10/2016 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 1 called back for key 

25/10/2016 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 1 Tipping Spoil From Van 

25/10/2016 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 1 Dropping Des Moran To Yard 

27/10/2016 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 2 Van check 

05/10/2016 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 2 van check 

07/10/2016 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GCCV 1 Left gully vac 1 needed for sunday 

14/10/2016 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 2 Dropped off (Gully Machine 1) 

14/10/2016 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 CV To drop e harkness over for a van 

11/10/2016 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 1 Tipped Spoil From Van 

18/10/2016 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 2 Van check 

17/10/2016 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 2 Van check 

27/10/2016 47 
MARROWBONE LANE PL @ pedestrian 

crossing 2 2 0 1 GV 1   

11/10/2016 47 MOLYNEUX YARD 3 3 0 0 GV 1   

11/10/2016 47 MOLYNEUX YARD FT PATH GRID 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

27/10/2016 47 OLD KILMAINHAM PL all gullies 21 20 1 0 GV 1 Road Finished 

25/10/2016 47 S C Rd PL @ 513 gully each side 3 1 2 0 GV 1   

04/10/2016 47 S C Rd PL at 606 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

14/10/2016 47 S.C.Rd dolphins barn to roundabout 0 0 0 0 SV 3 Marathon route. No flooding 

24/10/2016 47 S.C.Rd dolphins barn to roundabout 2 2 0 0 CV Outside bee cycles bike shop 

26/10/2016 47 S.C.Rd dolphins barn to roundabout 0 0 0 0 GV 1 
to bulfin rd,, tar in gullies informed 

inspector 

26/10/2016 47 S.C.Rd dolphins barn to roundabout 10 0 0 0 AGMan TAR IN MOST OF THE GULLIES 

14/10/2016 47 S.C.Rd suir road to inchicore road 0 0 0 0 SV 3 

Marathon route. Floods o/s st james 
wood apartments, Rothe Abbey, o/s 

no.509 opp mace shop. 

19/10/2016 47 THOMAS COURT PL jcn of handbury lane 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

24/10/2016 47 THOMAS ST PL @ jcn francis st 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

P
age 66

http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168876
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168876
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168789
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168789
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168796
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168796
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169009
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169009
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169056
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169056
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169066
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169066
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169189
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169189
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168147
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168147
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168263
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168263
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168531
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168531
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168535
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168535
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168364
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168364
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168710
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168710
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168658
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168658
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169196
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169196
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168391
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168391
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168392
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168392
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169197
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169197
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169057
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169057
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168133
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168133
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168560
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168560
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168957
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168957
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169165
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169165
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169272
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169272
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168559
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168559
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168840
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168840
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169008
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169008


19/10/2016 47 VICAR ST PL @ flats & laneway 5 5 0 1 GV 1   

21/10/2016 48 HERBERTON RD PL @ 84 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

04/10/2016 48 HERBERTON RD PL @ 84 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

07/10/2016 48 ROTHE ABBEY PL @ jcn s c rd 3 3 0 1 GV 1   

25/10/2016 48 SUIR RD PL @ bus stop 2 2 0 0 GV 1   

19/10/2016 49 BULFIN RD PL @ jcn s c rd 2 2 0 0 GV 1   

24/10/2016 49 SPA ROAD PL @ eurospar 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

28/10/2016 50 DECIES ROAD 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH HDN 

25/10/2016 50 JAMESTOWN ROAD PL @ 18 and near 18 3 3 0 0 GV 1   

06/10/2016 50 LANDEN ROAD 0 0 0 1 CON STH 

New surface pit gully 

,MDN 

11/10/2016 50 LANDEN ROAD 0 0 0 1 CON STH MDN 

11/10/2016 50 LANDEN ROAD 0 0 0 1 CON STH MDN 

11/10/2016 50 LANDEN ROAD 0 0 0 1 CON STH MDN 

26/10/2016 50 OLD NAAS RD PL @ jcn naas rd 2 2 0 0 GV 1   

28/10/2016 51 KILEEN RD PL at entrance to thorntons 3 3 0 0 GV 1   

18/10/2016 51 KILEEN ROAD 0 0 0 0 SV 3 Walkers van rental for repairs (bulbs) 

05/10/2016 51 KILEEN ROAD 0 0 0 0 TMV 
T M van - went to walkers to get brske 

pads checked 

28/10/2016 51 KYLEMORE RD PL bus stops landen-r/about 5 5 0 0 GV 1   

28/10/2016 51 LE FANU ROAD PL at 286 4 4 0 0 GV 1   

19/10/2016 52 DAVITT RD FT PATH GRID PL @ luas 2 2 0 0 GV 1   

19/10/2016 52 DAVITT RD PL suir rd to statoil garage 10 10 0 0 GV 1   

19/10/2016 52 DAVITT ROAD PL @ naas rd jcn 5 5 0 0 GV 1   

10/10/2016 52 SLIEVEBLOOM RD PL all gullies 4 4 0 0 GV 1   

10/10/2016 52 SLIEVENAMON RD PL @ apts entrance 5 5 0 0 GV 1   

24/10/2016 53 BALFE ROAD EAST 1 1 0 1 GM 2 
Minijet, opp no 15, brokedown, cctv 

done from m/hole 

24/10/2016 53 BALFE ROAD EAST 1 0 0 1 GM 2 

Minijet o/s no 17 from round m/h to 
gully, brokedown, cctv done- CF-

25/10/16 

10/10/2016 53 BUNTING ROAD PL opp 102 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

P
age 67

http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168841
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168841
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168942
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168942
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168137
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168137
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168280
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168280
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169058
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169058
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168850
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168850
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168978
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168978
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169264
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169264
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169059
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169059
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168199
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168199
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168337
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168337
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168338
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168338
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168339
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168339
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169154
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169154
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169253
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169253
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168777
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168777
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168166
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168166
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169255
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169255
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169254
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169254
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168839
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168839
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168838
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168838
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168837
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168837
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168325
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168325
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168326
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168326
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168962
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168962
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168963
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168963
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168327
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168327


28/10/2016 53 CAPTAIN'S DRIVE 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH HDN 

10/10/2016 53 CAPTAIN'S ROAD - PL - jcn of windmill rd 2 2 0 0 GV 1   

14/10/2016 53 CRUMLIN ROAD 0 0 0 0 SV 3 Marathon route. No Flooding 

14/10/2016 53 DRIMNAGH ROAD 0 0 0 0 SV 3 Marathon route. No Flooding 

25/10/2016 53 HAROLDS CROSS RD PL @ fmk finance 2 2 0 0 GV 1   

26/10/2016 53 
HAROLDS CROSS RD PL @ mount drummond 

ave 4 4 0 0 GV 1   

26/10/2016 53 
HAROLDS CROSS RD PL greenmount-canal X 

6 6 6 0 0 GV 1   

26/10/2016 53 
HAROLDS CROSS RD PL mt jerome-

greenmount 5 5 0 0 GV 1   

26/10/2016 53 
HAROLDS CROSS RD PL opp convent 

parkside 2 2 0 0 GV 1   

26/10/2016 53 
HAROLDS CROSS RD PL opp mt jerome 

pkside 6 6 0 0 GV 1   

17/10/2016 53 KIMMAGE RD LWR PL @ jcn casimir rd 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

14/10/2016 53 KIMMAGE ROAD WEST 0 0 0 0 SV 3 Marathon route. Some ponding 

10/10/2016 53 LIME KILN LANE PL all gullies 7 5 2 0 GV 1   

17/10/2016 53 OLD COUNTY RD PL @ fast fit 2 2 0 0 GV 1   

25/10/2016 53 PARNELL RD PL opp 1 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

25/10/2016 53 SAINT CLARE'S AVENUE PL all gullies 2 2 0 0 GV 1 Road Finished 

17/10/2016 53 SUNDRIVE ROAD PL outside DID electrical 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

10/10/2016 53 WALKINSTOWN DRIVE PL ft path at 107 1 1 0 0 GV 1   

14/10/2016 53 WALKINSTOWN ROAD 0 0 0 0 SV 3 Marathon route. No flooding 

 

P
age 68

http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169268
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169268
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168328
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168328
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168568
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168568
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168571
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168571
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169071
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169071
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169159
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169159
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169160
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169160
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169156
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169156
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169157
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169157
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169158
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169158
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168689
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168689
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168570
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168570
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168329
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168329
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168690
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168690
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169072
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169072
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169070
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=169070
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168691
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168691
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168330
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168330
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168569
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=168569


SOUTH CENTRAL AREA LIBRARY EVENTS FOR NOVEMBER 2016 
 

A Snapshot of November Events – Non regular 
 

Programme Branch Date and Weekday Event Audience 

Science Week Dolphin’s Barn 
Library 

Thursday 24 November at 
10am 

Junior Einstein Science 
Club Forensic 
Workshop 

Children only 

Science Week Walkinstown 
Library 

Tuesday 22 November at 
10.15am 

Junior Einstein Science 
Club Show 

Children only 

Science Week Ballyfermot 
Library 

Thursday 17 November at 
times tbc 

The Physics of Juggling  

Dublin Book 
Festival 

Ballyfermot 
Library 

Thursday 10th November at 
10.30am 

Author visit - Diana 
Bunici 

Children only 

Science Week Inchicore Library Tuesday 15 November at 
3.00pm 

Skills of the Great 
Inventors 

Children only 

 

Ballyfermot Library 
 

Non Regular 
or Regular 

Events 

Event 
Category 

Event Title 
Suitable 

Audience 
Date and Time 

Non- Regular Exhibition 1916 Street Banners & Art Exhibition All  Ongoing 

Non- Regular Exhibition W&R Jacob and the 1916 Rising  
Exhibition 

All  Month of  Nov  

Non-Regular Exhibition “Off the Cuff” Exhibition by Fibre Art 
students of BCFE  

All Month of Nov 

Non-Regular Author Visit Visit by children’s author Diana Bunici Class visit Thursday 10th Nov 
10.30am 

Non-Regular Lecture Ballyfermot/Chapelizod Partnership self 
advocacy course 

For people 
with 
disabilities in 
Ballyfermot 
area 

Friday 11th  
11.00am – 
3.00pm Week 2 of 
6 

Non- regular Coffee 
Morning 

D10 ASD Support group information 
session 

 Wed 3rd and 16th 
10.00am – 
12.30pm 

Non-regular 1st Aid Course BCFE students 1st aid course BCFE 
students 

Thurs 17th  & Fri 
18th 10.00am – 
5.00pm 

Non-regular 1st Aid Course BCFE students 1st aid course BCFE 
students 

Tues 22nd  & Wed 
23rd  10.00am – 
5.00pm 

Non-regular Science Week 
Roadshow 

James Soper Show Class visits Thurs 17th  

Non-Regular Story time Celebration event for St Matthews Story 
time  

St Matthews 
Pre-school 
and parents 

Tuesday 29th 
11.15am 

Page 69



Non Regular 
or Regular 

Events 

Event 
Category 

Event Title 
Suitable 

Audience 
Date and Time 

Non- Regular Story time Celebration event for Family BASE story 
time 

 Wednesday 30th 
11.00am 

Non–Regular Workshop Interconnect Project, creative group project 
in association with the HSE 

Closed Thursdays 4.30 – 
8.00pmFridays 
10.00 - 12.30pm 

Regular Course Healthy Food Made Easy Adults Tuesdays  (10.00 
– 12.30) 
6 classes starting 
on Tuesday 8th    

Regular  WALK – Walkinstown Adult Learning  
group 

Closed Wednesdays 
2.15pm – 5pm 

Regular  WALK – Walkinstown Adult Learning group Closed Mondays 2pm – 
4.00pm  

Regular Meeting Ballyfermot Heritage Group Closed Thursday 13thand 
27th Oct@ 6.30pm 

Regular Workshop Creative Writing group  All  Every second 
Wednesdays @ 
6.30pm 

Regular Meeting COPD info session  Last Thursday of 
month  
2.00pm – 4.00pm 

Regular Facilitated 
Group 

Monday Afternoon Book Club  Adult 2nd  Mon of month 
@ 2pm 

Regular Facilitated 
Groups or 
organisations 

Junior Writers Group Adult Thursdays at 
6.00pm 

Regular Facilitated 
Groups or 
Organisations 

Tuesday Evening Book Club  Adult 1st  Tuesday of 
the month 6.00pm 

Regular Facilitated 
Group 

West Dublin Widow’s C.A.R.E. Adult Last Friday on the 
Month - at 
11.00am 

Regular Facilitated 
Groups or 
Organisations 

Writers Group Adult Thursdays at 
6.00pm 

Regular Book Club Junior Book Club Children Thursday 20th Oct 
@ 3.30pm 

Regular Facilitated 
Groups or 
Organisations 

St. John of God, Walkinstown, Book Club Adult Mondays and 
Thursdays  
10.30am – 
1.00pm 

Regular Workshop Story Telling for Toddlers Children Every Wednesday 
@ 11.30am 

 
 

Page 70



Dolphin’s Barn 

Regular or Non 

Regular 

Type of Event Event Title Audience Date and Time 

Non Regular Exhibition Fire Brigade 1916 
Exhibition 

Adult 17th October – 18th 
November 

Non Regular Exhibition Enable Ireland Art 
Exhibition 

Adult 18th November- 20th 
December        

Non Regular Science Show Junior Einstein 
Science Club  

Children 24.11.16 

Non Regular Author Meeting  Meeting with Liz 
Pichon in Liberty Hall 

Children Monday 7th November at 
11am.     

Non Regular Film Screening Quai d’Orasy in 
association with 
Access Cinema and  
Alliance Française 

Adult 16.11.16 at 6pm 

Non Regular Film Screening In the Courtyard in 
association with 
Access Cinema and  
Alliance Française 

Adult 23.11.16 at 6pm 

Non Regular Film Screening Title to be confirmed Adult 30.11.16 at 6pm 

Regular Book Club Grand Canal Book 
Club 

Adult 2nd Monday of the month 
at 7pm 

Regular Book Club Beyond the Pale Adult  External Book Club  

Regular Book Club Magaret Mason Adult External Book Club 

Regular Book Club Dolphins Barn Book 
Club 

Adult Last Thursday of the 
month at 11am 

Regular Book Club Afternoon Book Club Adult TBC  

Regular Book Club Page Turners Adult External Book Club 

Regular Workshop  Parent & Toddler 
Group 

Parent and 
Toddler 

Every Tuesday 11am-12 

Regular Book Display Dublin Book Festival Adult 10-13 November 

Regular Book Display Bram Stoker Festival Adult/Children 28 October – 5th 
November 

Regular Book Display Science Week Adult/Chilren 13-30 November 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 71

http://www.science.ie/


Inchicore Library 

Type of Event Event Title 

Book Display 
 

New  Book Display for Adult and Child 
1916/2016 for Adult and Child 
European History for  Adult and Child 
Richmond Barracks 

 
 

Regular/Non 
Regular 

Type of Event Event Title Adult / Child 
/ Family 

Date and Time 

Non Regular Science Week 
Workshop 

Skills of the Great 
Inventors 

Children Tuesday 15 November 
at 3.00pm 

Regular Exhibition Children’s Art Competition 
Display 

Children  

Regular Exhibition Great Book of 
Kilmaimham 

Adult ongoing 

 Miscellaneous Film Showing Adult Wed 9th November @ 
6pm sharp 

Regular Faciliated Group Knitting Circle Adult Thursdays from 3 – 
4pm 

Regular Book Club Wednesday Book Club, 
reading   

Adult Last Wed of Month 30th 
November @ 6.30pm 

Regular Book Club The Monday Book Club 
reading “Black Moon’’ by 
Kenneth Calhoun 

Adult First Monday of Month 
7th November @ 
6.30pm 

Regular Workshop Colouring Children During the month 

Regular  Workshop Story Time  Children Tuesdays at 2.45 – 
3.15pm 

 

 

Walkinstown Library 

Non Regular 
or Regular  

Event 
Category 

Event Title Audienc
e 

Date and Time 

Non Science 
Week  

Junior Einstein Science Club Show Children Tuesday 22nd at 10.15  
BOOKED OUT 

Non  Knitters Christmas Night and Charity Raffle  
with music by St Agnes Singers   

All Wed 23rd 6.30-
8.00p.m. 

Regular Facilitated 
Groups and 
Organisations 

Communiversity-Free University Course in 
conjunction with Maynooth University and 
Dublin City Public Libraries and Dublin 
South City Partnership  

Adult Thursdays 10-1.00  
Sept -Dec 

Regular Facilitated 
Groups and 
Organisations 

Knitting Circle Adult Wednesday’s 6pm-
8pm 

Regular Facilitated 
Groups and 
Organisations 

GIY(Grow-it-yourself) Adult 3rd Monday of the 
month from 6.30pm-
7.45  

Regular Facilitated Adult Readers’ Group Adult 2nd Thurs. @ 3.30pm 

Page 72



Groups and 
Organisations 

Regular Facilitated 
Groups and 
Organisations 

Crochet Group  Adult Saturdays @11am 
 

Regular Conversation 
Exchange 

Ciorcal Comhra (Irish language exchange) Adult  Mondays 6pm-7pm 

Regular Mother and 
Toddler 
Group 

 Mother and toddler group Children  Tuesdays 11am-
12.30pm 

Regular Book Club  Children’s Book Club Children 4th Monday of the 
month @ 4pm 

 

Page 73





South Central Area Committee 

Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership Report  

16TH November 2016 

 
 
Marathon Kids is a citywide running programme developed to encourage 6th class pupils to 
embrace healthy, active lifestyles. The aim of the programme is to inspire children to run; 
and over 8 weeks accumulate the equivalent distance of a Marathon – 26.2 miles! Resource 
booklets have been given to all pupils to assist with motivation and learning. 
 
DCC Sport & Wellbeing Partnership have teamed up with Fingal County Council to build on 
the very successful programme rolled out by Fingal in 2015, which saw 22 primary schools 
and over 600 kids take part in this unique event. The 2016 programme commenced in 
September (with many schools from the SCA taking part) and will climax in a ‘final mile’ 
event & celebration to be held in the National Sports Campus, Abbotstown, on Sunday 
November 20th. 
 
Late Night Leagues   
The DCSWP Sports Officer is working with the FAI Soccer Development Officer and the 
local Gardaí from both Kevin St. and Kilmainham Garda Stations to run a 4-week local 
soccer competition in St. Catherine’s Sport Centre on Monday nights for both 12 to 15 year 
olds & 16 to 19 year olds. The programme commenced on Monday 7th November.  A second 
3-week Late Night League Programme was scheduled to commence on the 10th of 
November on the pitch in Basin Lane from 6pm to 8pm. Representatives will travel to 
Irishtown Stadium in Ringsend for the Citywide Finals Night on Friday December 9th. 
 
Late Night League Programmes will also run in Clogher Road Sports Centre and Ballyfermot 
Sports & Fitness. 
 
Safeguarding 2 (Children’s Officer Course) 
The DCSWP Sports Officer will be facilitating an open Safeguarding 2 course (Children’s 
Officer) which will be taking place on Wednesday 23rd November from 6:30pm to 9:30pm in 
Cabra Parkside Community Sports Complex. The course is open to all adults involved in the 
running and assisting of young people’s activities but to attend participants must hold a 
current Safeguarding 1 Certificate. 
 
Safeguarding 3 (Designated Liaison Persons Course) 
The DCSWP Sports Officer will be facilitating an open Safeguarding 3 course (Designated 
Liaison Persons) on Thursday November 17th from 6:30pm to 9:30pm in St. Catherine’s 
Sport Centre, Marrowbone Lane. The course is open to all adults involved in the running and 
assisting of young people’s activities but to attend participants must hold a current 
Safeguarding 1 Certificate. 
 
TULSA Programme South City Family Support Services 
The DCSWP Sports Officer is working with the South City Family Support Services TULSA 
to help build resilience for a group of young people aged 8 to 12 years of age and allow 
them find their voice. The group is taking part in a 12-week Water Confidence / Snorkelling 
Programme which takes place in Crumlin Swimming Pool on Tuesday afternoons from 3pm 
to 4pm.  This Programme runs until December. 
 
 

Page 75



Teen Gym - Introductory Programme 
The DCSWP Sports Officer with the support of the St. Catherine’s Gym staff will organise 
another four week block of Teen Gym sessions for new participants, which will commence 
on Saturday 3rd December. This introductory programme is held on Saturday afternoons 
after the gym is closed to the public. The teens are given exclusive access to equipment and 
instructor supervision.  
 
Once teens have completed these four weeks they may then use the gym after school on 
weekdays and up to 6pm daily during the school holidays. We constantly have new teens 
signing up for this programme and we have also retained a large number of teens who have 
progressed from Teen Gym to a full gym membership. 
 
 The cost of Teen Gym is €2 per session and is open to any teen from the age of 13 – 16 
years. 
 
Teen Gym also operates every Wednesday & Thursday in Clogher Road Sports Hall (St. 
Kevin’s College) 
 
EPIC (Empowering Young People in Care) Team Building Event 
A team of three DCSWP Sports Officers will be working with EPIC’s Advocacy Officer in 
providing an adventure / team building day for the youth committee group of 20 teenagers on 
Saturday 19th November. The group will be travelling to Lough Crew for the day to take part 
in a range of activities. 
 
Club Support 
The local DCSWP Sports Officer supports and works with the coaches from St. Catherine’s 
Boxing Club & Tae Kwon-Do Club who both train on various evenings in St.Catherine’s 
Sports Centre and are always willing to take on new members. Likewise with Liberty Saints 
Rugby Club U13’s & 17’s who Tuesday & Thursday nights in Liberty Park on Basin Lane. 
 
Weightlifting Programme with Rialto/Fatima/Dolphin Youth Groups on Tuesday 22nd, 29th 
November & 6th December from 4.30pm – 6pm. 
 
Fencing Programme with Mercy Girl’s Secondary School, Inchicore, on Friday 18th, 25th 
November & 2nd, 9th December from 1pm – 2.30pm. 
 
Tri Heroes Programme: In conjunction with Triathlon Ireland, this initiative teaches the 
basics of triathlons to primary school children in the SCA (Nov 18th & 25th) 
 
Bluebell Change for Life: An ongoing fitness programme from 7pm – 8pm on Mondays 
(Zumba) & Thursdays (Step Aerobics) in Bluebell Community Centre. Open to all the 
community. 
 
Fatima Change for Life: An ongoing fitness programme in partnership with Fatima Health 
Care Team. 6pm – 7pm on Mondays (Step Aerobics) & Thursdays (Circuit Training) in the 
F2 Centre. Open to all the community. 
 
Activities for Over 55’s 
Aqua Aerobics, every Wednesday from 11am – 12pm in Guinness Pool 
Chair Aerobics, every Thursday from 10.30am – 11.30am in Donore Avenue Community 
Centre 
Indoor Bowls, every Friday from 12pm – 1pm in Donore Avenue Community Centre 
 
 
 

Page 76



 
Addiction Response Crumlin (5 Programmes) 
Mondays: 11am to 1pm, Clogher Rd – Recovered Group 
Tuesdays: 11am to 1pm, Urban Gym Drimnagh – Recovery Via Sport Group 1 
Thursday: 11am to 1pm, Urban Gym Drimnagh – Recovery Via Sport Group 2 
Fridays: 11am to 12pm, Clogher Rd – Women’s Group 
Fridays: 11am to 1pm, Clogher Rd – Addiction Response Men 
 
 
Inchicore Sports Centre - New Fitness Classes 
Mondays: Pump & Tone, 6- 7pm 
Tuesdays: TRX, 7- 8pm 
Saturdays: Spin & Core, 11-12pm 
 
Pay as you go - 5 euro per class … all levels welcome … no need to book! 
 
Football Drop-in every Monday from 5pm to 6pm in Ballyfermot Sports & Fitness for 5 – 7 
year olds (skill development) and every Thursday from 5pm to 6pm in Inchicore Sports 
Centre for teens (social, diversion, skill development) 
 
A Primary School Football Blitz will take place on Friday, December 9th, from 11am – 1pm in 
Inchicore Sports Centre for all primary schools in the immediate and wider area 
 
Girl’s Football Drop-in every Monday from 5pm to 6pm in St. Catherine’s Sports Centre for 6 
– 11 year olds 
 
School Football Sessions will run in St. Catherine’s Sports Centre every Monday & Tuesday 
morning for local schools in the area 
 
Kick Start 2: the FAI Community Football Development Officer for Crumlin will deliver this 
coach development course to 24 students from Pearse College over 2 days in December (6th 
& 7th) 
 
The Boxing Development Officer will commence Start-Box Gold sessions this month. The 
Gold programmes consist of participants who showed promise through their Bronze and 
Silver Sessions and have consented to increased intensity, by partaking in schooled-spars 
etc… 
 
There are a limited amount of students involved (amalgamated from all DCC areas) who will 
commence training at the high performance gym in the National Stadium throughout 
November. Depending on their response, they will be matched up accordingly with a view to 
partaking in the Showcase Finals, which take place in early December. 
 
The Cricket Development Officer will be facilitating school sessions in both Drimnagh 
Castle B.N.S. & Scoil Colm (Crumlin) over the coming weeks. 
 
Table Cricket (cricket designed for physically challenged participants) has been taking place 
with the St. John of Gods Programme, held in Ballyfermot Sports & Fitness. On the 12th of 
December we are having a competitive match between this group and a team from Ballymun 
(venue TBC). 
 

 

Page 77



Antonia Martin, Manager, Sports Officers: antonia.martin@dublincity.ie  

Cormac Healy, Manager, Sports & Fitness Ballyfermot: don.daly@dublincity.ie  

Darragh Cunningham, St. Catherine’s Sports Centre: darragh.cunningham@dublincity.ie  

Mitch Whitty, Sports Officer: mitchell.whitty@dublincity.ie  

Catherine Flood, Sports Officer: catherine.flood@dublincity.ie  

Will Morris, Sports Officer: william.morris@dublincity.ie  

Sharon Kelly, Sports Officer: sharon.kelly@dublincity.ie  

Gareth Herbert, Sports Officer: gareth.herbert@dublincity.ie  

Derek Ahern, Sports Officer: derek.ahern@dublincity.ie  

Michael Moore, Soccer: michael.moore@fai.ie  

Marc Kenny, Soccer: marc.kenny@fai.ie  

David Rake, Soccer: david.rake@fai.ie  

Jonathan Tormey, Soccer: jonathan.tormey@fai.ie  

Ed Griffin, Boxing: shandygriffin@hotmail.com  

Fintan McAllister, Cricket: fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie  

Aoife Thompson, Rugby: aoife.thompson@leinsterrugby.ie  

 

 

Alan Morrin 

Staff Officer 

Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership  

 

Page 78

mailto:antonia.martin@dublincity.ie
mailto:don.daly@dublincity.ie
mailto:darragh.cunningham@dublincity.ie
mailto:mitchell.whitty@dublincity.ie
mailto:catherine.flood@dublincity.ie
mailto:william.morris@dublincity.ie
mailto:sharon.kelly@dublincity.ie
mailto:gareth.herbert@dublincity.ie
mailto:derek.ahern@dublincity.ie
mailto:michael.moore@fai.ie
mailto:marc.kenny@fai.ie
mailto:david.rake@fai.ie
mailto:jonathan.tormey@fai.ie
mailto:shandygriffin@hotmail.com
mailto:fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie
mailto:aoife.thompson@leinsterrugby.ie


 
 

 
 

 
Planning & Property Development Department 

Civic Offuces.        
                              
 

 
 
 

 
 
The Chairperson and Members  
South Central Area Committee 
 

 
 
 
 

 
DERELICT SITES REPORT  

 

 
 
I attach the Quarter 3 Derelict Sites Section update for the South Central Area.  
 
Please contact the Derelict Sites Section, details below, for more detailed information on any 
of the sites listed. 
 
derelictsites@dublincity.ie  
 
Nial Dully, Bernie Mills tel 222 3941, 222 2330 
Fiona Devlin tel 222 3381, Eoin Lawlor tel 222 3385, Laura McCabe  tel 222 3015 
 
 
 
 
P. Clegg      
Executive Manager 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 79

mailto:derelictsites@dublincity.ie


 
 

Derelict Sites Update 

 

Location 
Actions taken under the Derelict Sites Act, 1990 

in Quarter 3 - 2016 

Ardee Street 9, D8 

Correspondence received from owner on 14th 
September,  confirming that he is in discussions with 
his architects, Sheehan and Barry re a development 
scheme for this site.  

 

Brainboro Terrace, 4A & 4B, Dublin 

8. 

 

 
Some Improvement works have been carried out at 
this site – vegetation cut back and a new solid fence 
has replaced the wooden hoarding at the road side 
boundary.  Being kept under review. However, the 
site remains on the Derelict Sites Register. 
 

Brickfield Lane /South Brown Street, 

factory site, D8.  
Works carried out as requested. File closed. 

Brookfield Road, former Printworks, 
D8 

Inspected on 3rd August 2016.  Letter sent to owner 
to remove dumping & overgrowth.   Works carried 
out as requested. File Closed. 

 

Cashel Avenue, 18, D12 

 

 
Site re-inspected on 13th July 2016.  Remains 
derelict and on Derelict Sites Register. Valuers in 
negotations with owner to acquire this site. 
 

Connolly Avenue, 35, D8 
Inspected on 29th August 2016.  Openings secured 
and site cleared.  File closed. 

 

Crumlin Road, 201, D12 

 

 
Inspected on 5th August 2016.  No action required.  
File Closed. 

Crumlin Road, ( Former Leisure 

Centre) 

 
Notice of intention to enter site on the register S8 (2) 
on 20th September.  Improvement works have 
commenced.  Site being kept under review. 
 

Cooley Road, 167, Drimnagh, D12. 
Owner has been requested  to carry out 
improvement works he has committed to so.   Being 
kept under review. 

Drimnagh Road, 34, D12 
Inspected on 6th September, 2016 and reference of 
ownership requested with view to writing to owner. 

Page 80



 
 

Emerald Square, site adj. 31, D8. 
Inspected on 26th October, 2016 .  Owner written to 
and requested to tidy up the site. Being kept under 
review. 

Emmet Road, The Horse and Jockey 
Pub, Dublin 8. 

Owner written to and requested to carry out 
improvement works.  Site being kept under review. 

Emmet Road, 92, D8 
Re-inspected on 9th August 2016.  Completely 
renovated.  No further action warranted.  File closed.  

Francis Street, 92/93, D8. 
Notice of intention to enter site on the Register S8(2) 
served  on the owners.   

Emmet Road, 183, D8  
Site entered on the Derelict Sites Register on 13th 
October, 2016 

Francis Street, 98-99, Dublin 8. 

Owner has been asked to cut back 
overgrowth/weeds and remove  graffiti from 
fence/front wall 
Being kept under review. 

 
Gala Cinema Site, Ballyfermot Road, 
Dublin 10. 
 

Letter sent to receivers on 7th September,  to clear & 
secure site. Being kept under review 

Galtymore Road 309A, D12 
Inspected on 13th September 2016.  Renovation 
works have started. Being kept under review. 

Hazelbrook Drive, 43, Terenure, 
D6W 

Inspected on 22nd August 2016.  Reference of 
ownership requested with view to writing to owners to 
carry out improvement works. 

James's Street 180, 182, 183, D.8. 
Inspected on 17th August 2016. Site appears to have 
been sold -   new reference of ownership requested , 
keep under review.   

Jamestown Road, former Clayton 
Love Factory, Inchicore, Dn 8. 

Letter written to new owners outlining required works 
to be carried out.  Being kept under review. 

Kilfenora Road, 46, Crumlin, D.12 

 
Inspected on 13th July 2016.  Letter sent to owners to 
clear site of overgrowth . Site being kept under 
review. 
 

Page 81



 
 

Lucan Road, Mayfield House, D.20. 
Inspected on 22nd August 2016.  Letter sent to 
owner’s Solr. advising as to necessary works. Being 
kept under review. 

Merton Park 5, D8 
Inspected on 2nd August 2016.  The property is being 
renovated at the moment . File closed 

Merton Park 6, D8 
Inspected on 2nd August 2016.  Owners contacted - 
they have cleared out weeds in front garden . File 
closed. 

Merton Park, 16, D.8  

Re-inspected on 4th October, 2016. Front garden 
tidied – rubble, litter and debris removed. Site 
removed from Derelict Sites Register on 10 /10/ 
2016. File closed. 

Prospect Villas, 1 & 2, Inchicore, D8 
Re-inspected on 5th August 2016.  Reference of 
ownership received, new owners written to.  Being 
kept under review. 

Rafters Lane, 3, D12 
Inspected on 13th July 2016.  No action warranted. 
File Closed. 

South Circular Rd. 355-361 
(Rialto Cinema site), D.8  

Site entered on the Derelict Sites Register on 11th 
October, 2016. 

 

South Circular Road, 765D/765E, 

Bellevue, D8 

 

 
Re-inspected on 14th July 2016.  To remain on 
Derelict Sites Register.  

St. Agnes Terrace (rear 1-6), D12  

Inspected on 5th August 2016.  Problems with title. 
The solicitors dealing with Estate have been asked to 
carry out improvement works, Being kept under 
review. 

St. Anthony’s Road, 11, D8 
Re-inspected on 5th August 2016.  No further action 
required.  File closed. 

St. Anthony’s Road, 14, D8 
Inspected on 5th August 2016.  Reference of 
ownership requested with view to writing to the 
owners. 

Thomas Court, 1-3, D8  
Re-inspected on 17th August 2016. No further action 
required.   File closed. 

Page 82



 
 

Thomas Street, 144, D8 
Re-inspected on 15th September 2016.  New 
hoarding erected.  No action warranted. File closed. 

 
 
Tyrconnell Road/Goldenbridge 
Industrial Estate, land at corner. 
 

 
 
Letter sent to receivers to clean-up & maintain site. 
Site being kept under review. 
 
 

 
 
Usher Street 1A-2, D 8 

 
Inspected on 17th August 2016.  Letter sent to owner 
to clear overgrowth & graffiti.  Site for sale being kept 
under review. 

 
 
Windmill Road, 20 / Raphoe Road, 
D12 

 
Site inspected on 15th September 2016.  Owners 
requested to board up windows.  

 
Sites on Derelict Sites Register 

 

 

Location 

 

Owner 

 

Date of entry on 
Register 

 

Bellevue, 765D/765E South 
Circular Road  

 

Furlong Investments Ltd., 
Registered Office, Springbank, 
Pollardstown, The Curragh, 
Co. Kildare. 

 

 

20/11/2009 

 

135 Herberton Road,  

 

 

Mr. John Cunnane, 135 
Herberton Road, Rialto, Dublin 
8 

  

 

29/03/2011 

 

4A/4B Brainboro Terrace,  

 

 

Mr. Dieter Bergmann. 

53 Rathgar Avenue, Dublin 6  

 

and 

 

Mr. Eugene Hanniffy, address 
unknown  

 

04/05/2012 

 

 

25 Tyrconnell Street 

 

 
Ms. Susan Sherry, 
105A Ardara Avenue, 
Donaghmede, 
Dublin 13 

 

09/07/2013 

Site adj. 11 Hanover Lane  Charles & Denise. Fleury, The 09/07/2013 

Page 83



 
 

 Square, Cahir, Co.Kildare  

and 

Mr. William Fannin, address 
unknown. 

 

  

 

29/30 Main Street, Chapelizod 

 

 

Niall Clarke & John Coleman, 
c/o 14 Westway Park, 
Blanchardstown, Dublin 15.  

 

 

18/02/2014 

 

6 Rowserstown Lane 

 

 

Ms. Aoife Tuomey, 24 
Raymond Street, Dublin 8. 

 

 

10/09/2014 

 

38 Cashel Avenue 

 

 

Mr. John O’Dowd, Monavullen, 
Oulart, Gorey, Co. Wexford. 

 

 

19/09/2014 

 

Chapelizod Hill Road (Former 
Faulkner’s factory) 

 

 

Shrewsbury Square Ltd., Unit 
2, Ballinteer Business Park, 
Ballinteer Avenue, Dublin 16. 

 

 

23/09/2014 

 

188 Downpatrick Road 

 

 

Estate of Christine O’Leary, 
address unknown 

 

20/11/2014 

 

33 James’s Street 

 

Trustees of the Carolan 
Research Trust  

 

28/01/2015 

 

 

1 Usher Street 

 

 

 

Steen O’Reilly, 31-34 Trimgate 
Street, Navan, Co. Meath. 

  

 

 

 

29/04/2015 

 

2 ABC Chapelizod Road 

 

Mr. Paul Smyth, 76 Maryville, 
Knockmaroon Hill, Dublin 20. 

 

 

04/06/2015 

 

32 Reuben Avenue 

 

 

Mr. Patrick Mitchell, address 
unknown 

 

 

03/06/2015 

 

118 Ballyfermot Drive, D.10 

 

Estate of James King, c/o Tony 
Taaffe Solrs., 1 Main Street, 

 

19/06/2015 

Page 84



 
 

 Finglas, Dublin 11. 

 

 

1 Mulberry Cottages, D.20 

 

 

Ryan Estate, c/o P. C. Moore & 
Co. Solrs., 39 Westland Row, 
Dublin 2 & c/o Stephenson 
Solrs., 55 Carysfort Avenue, 
Blackrock, Co. Dublin. 

   

 

26/06/2015 

 

2 Mulberry Cottages, D.20 

 

 

Ryan Estate, c/o P. C. Moore & 
Co. Solrs., 39 Westland Row, 
Dublin 2 & c/o Stephenson 
Solrs., 55 Carysfort Avenue, 
Blackrock, Co. Dublin. 

 

 

26/06/2015 

 

7 Mulberry Cottages, D.20 

 

 

Ryan Estate, c/o P. C. Moore & 
Co. Solrs., 39 Westland Row, 
Dublin 2 & c/o Stephenson 
Solrs., 55 Carysfort Avenue, 
Blackrock, Co. Dublin. 

 

 

 

26/06/2015 

 

10 Mulberry Cottages, D.20 

 

 

Ryan Estate, c/o P. C. Moore & 
Co. Solrs., 39 Westland Row, 
Dublin 2 & c/o Stephenson 
Solrs., 55 Carysfort Avenue, 
Blackrock, Co. Dublin. 

 

26/06/2015 

 

11 Mulberry Cottages, D.20 

 

 

Ryan Estate, c/o P. C. Moore & 
Co. Solrs., 39 Westland Row, 
Dublin 2 & c/o Stephenson 
Solrs., 55 Carysfort Avenue, 
Blackrock, Co. Dublin. 

 

26/06/2015 

 

3 St Anthony’s Road, D.8. 

 

 

Mr. Aidan O’ Brien, 1143 
Kilbelin, Newbridge, Co. 
Kildare. 

 

 

02/09/2015 

 

Old Naas Road, Coolfan 
House 

 

 

Mr. Declan Taite & Mr. Patrick 
Brennan, Receivers, Duff & 
Phelps, Molyneux House, Bride 
Street, Dublin 8. 

  

 

04/09/2015 

 

Old Naas Road, adj. Coolfan 
House 

 

Mr. Declan Taite & Mr. Patrick 
Brennan, Receivers, Duff & 

 

04/09/2015 

Page 85



 
 

 Phelps, Molyneux House, Bride 
Street, Dublin 8. 

 

Cashel Avenue, 18, Crumlin 

 

Sydat Properties Ltd., 42 
Dorset Street , Dublin 1 

 

28/09/2015 

 

4 Rehoboth Place, D.8. 

 

 

Gerard Kehoe, c/o Martin 
Solrs., 1 Elmfield Rise, Dublin 
13.  

 

11/01/2016 

 

Thomas Court, 37  

 

 

Ruari & Kate O’ Ceallaigh, 
Collegeland, Summerhill, Co. 
Meath. 

 

 

18/02/2016 

 

614 South Circular Rd., Dublin 
8  

 

 

Mr. Liam Brophy, 614 South 
Circular Road, Dublin 8 

 

 

16/09/2016 

 

355-361 South Circular Road 
(Rialto Cinema site), D.8. 

 

 

Marziplant Ltd., Avonlea, 
Demesne, Lucan, Co. Dublin.  

 

11/10/2016 

 

183 Emmet Road, Dublin 8. 

 

 

New Life Properties Ltd., 
Coolcronan, Foxford, Co. 
Mayo. 

 

 

13/10/2016 

 

 

Page 86



DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL 
SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

16th November 2016 
 

Q1 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 
To ask the relevant depot, responsible for maintenance of Bangor Circle in Crumlin to 
arrange for the remains of the burnt out wheelie bins on the green to be removed. 
 

Q2 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 
To ask that a litter bin be re-installed at the entrance to the Warrenmount 
Presentation Secondary School on Clarence Mangan Road, Dublin 8. Residents 
there report significant littering at that location, which a litter bin will mitigate. 
 

Q3 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 
To ask our Area Manager to provide this Councillor with a report outlining the nature 
of the works, timeframe and consultation plans for planned improvement works at 
Pimlico public domain. 
 

Q4 Councillor Rebecca Moynihan 
To ask the Area Manager for (details supplied)? 

 
Q5 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To ask the Area Manager to arrange for pedestrian buttons at the four junctions of 
(details supplied). Children attending the (details supplied) crossing at this busy 
junction are in danger and just this morning a child on her way to school was 
knocked down at this junction. There are buttons at just two of the lights. 
 

Q6 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to report on all and any correspondence between DCC and 
Church regarding the change of use of the Nicolas and Myra Hall from community 
hall to homeless hostel. 
 

Q7 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to upgrade the playground at (details supplied) and that a 
safety audit be carried out on it. Residents have informed me that children are being 
injured here regularly. 
 

Q8 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager what is being done to endure that the playground at 
(details supplied) is made safe. A child fell there last week and broke his femur. He 
tripped on a lip of concrete that was left there. 
 

Q9 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to agree to carry out an evaluation/report on (details 
supplied) with a view to demolishing and consider the details. 

 
Q10 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

To ask the Area Manager to list the areas/complexes where they have installed 
CCTV or part funded installation and to ask why Marrowbone Lane buildings does 
not have CCTV. 

 
Q11 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
 

Page 87



Q12 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager that the following repairs be addressed with Circle Housing 
(details supplied)?. 

 
Q13 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manger to ask the relevant department in Dublin City Council to 
meet with me for an on site meeting at Claddagh Green, Ballyfermot, so as to see 
once and for all the chronic traffic mess that is Claddagh Green. We need to look at a 
one way system, additional car parking 1 hour maximum parking, additional litter bins 
at this busy location with a Post Office, Supermarket, Chemist etc. 
 

Q14 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 

Q15 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager that Dublin City Council look at the possibility of providing a 
community building / facility for residents / children in the Jamestown Area of 
Inchicore Dublin 8. It is proving very difficult to retain a strong sense of community in 
an area with an absence of a focal point in the area. The volunteers in the community 
have run many community events such as street parties, summer projects, however 
they need a base. Has Dublin City Council any positive response or can the Office of 
Public Works who own a large empty house on their property, be asked to allow for 
community usage. 
 

Q16 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager can Dublin City Council look at the provision of additional 
trees in the large containers similar to James Street, Dublin 8, into the Ballyfermot 
Road area and look at additional public bins from the old Gala Cinema towards 
Grange Cross. This busy area has very little bins compared to other areas of the 
community and particularly the retail district. 
 

Q17 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager that Dublin City Council look into the following housing 
matter as a matter of urgency (details supplied)? 
 

Q18 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager, can Dublin City Council please explain why the village 
area of Inchicore has been allowed fall into disrepair to the current extent. Tatty shop 
fronts, closed down premises, short term usage all add to a feeling of a rundown 
area. I can remember as a child Inchicore was a busy area with shoppers, whilst 
those days are probably over, there can be a pleasant experience in this historic area 
if we provide proper planning, allow some units who have no longer a commercial 
use, to be turned into residential units and a shop front competition, concession on 
commercial rates to allow the area regenerate. 
 

Q19 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager to ask the relevant Dublin City Council Department to 
please replace the white badly worn road markings on the intersection of Cherry 
Orchard Avenue and Raheen Park, Cherry Orchard, Dublin 10. This road is well used 
by traffic and all too often cars cross this busy junction, we need the lines replaced 
and a large stop sign erected. 
 

Q20 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
That the gullies along O’ Hogan Road, Ballyfermot, on the residential side of the 
Road next to Ballyfermot Road be cleaned and the lamp standard at the first block of 

Page 88



housing on O`Hogan Road be repaired the light keeps going on and off the bulb etc 
needs attention. 
 

Q21 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager that the height restriction barrier be replaced on 
Chapelizod Hill Road. In the interests to the safety of those using the bridge 
overhead, all too often trucks etc struck the bridge due to the height restriction. There 
was a barrier here for years but was removed a few years ago resulting in many 
vehicles hitting the bridge structure. 
 

Q22 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager, in the interest of good community relations and safety, that 
all road closures in the Chapelizod area be notified well in advance to elected 
members and representatives of the COVA residents association. Not a week now 
goes by with serious traffic congestion with road closures in the Phoenix Park public 
roads. Common sense should prevail and residents informed well in advance. 
 

Q23 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)?  
 

Q24 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to consider the following request (details supplied)? 
 

Q25 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to investigate (details supplied)?  
 

Q26 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q27 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q28 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q29 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q30 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q31 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q32 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q33 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q34 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
 

Page 89



Q35 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q36 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q37 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q38 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ensure that the replacement of a hall door in our tenants 
home be installed without further delay (details supplied).  This order was placed with 
the Joinery Workshop in May 2015. 

 
Q39 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ensure that the replacement of a hall door in our tenants 
home be installed without further delay (details supplied).  This order was placed with 
the Joinery Workshop in November 2014 and the installation was promised with 6 
months of that date and as yet has not been done. 

 
Q40 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask the relevant section to have the wall at the entrance to 
Crumlin Park repainted.  This is the wall separating the entrance from the adjoining 
cottage. The wall was painted cream. 

 
Q41 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Road Traffic section to examine the painted lines at 
(details supplied) with a view to allowing a safer passage for the resident to enter and 
exit the drive in. 

 
Q42 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Dangerous Building Section to arrange for an 
inspection of the rear exit of an apartment complex where it exits onto (details 
supplied). 

 
Q43 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Traffic Advisory Group to examine the junction of 
Sundrive Road and Clogher Road  to improve pedestrian safety and in particular at 
school starting and finishing times. There is a high level of school students crossing 
at this location and very recently a school child was seriously injured when knocked 
down at this location. In addition can the whole issue of safe crossing be examined 
along Clogher Road in the vicinity of the school and college?  

 
Q44 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Parks and Housing Sections to examine the trees at 
the front of our housing complex at (details supplied) to have them pruned so as they 
block light. 

 
Q45 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Road Maintenance to reinstate with tarmac the 
damaged and crumbling red road safety ramps, particularly along Bangor Road and 
other surrounding roads in the Crumlin area.    

 
 
 

Page 90



Q46 Councillor Pat Dunne 
Can the Area Manager ask our Sewage Section to inspect the sewage manhole in 
the back garden of (details supplied). This manhole has a history of overflowing and 
any investigation should involve a camera in order to determine the cause of the 
blockage. 

 
Q47 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager provide a report on the future plans for the allotments and 
community garden in Chamber Street and can the report clearly state the zoning 
category of this plot in the new Dublin City Development Plan. 

 
Q48 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q49 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q50 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)?  
 
Q51 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q52 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q53 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)?  
 
Q54 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q55 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q56 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q57 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)?  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 91




	Agenda
	1 Minutes of Meeting held on the 19th of October
	2 Questions to Area Manager
	3 Roads and Traffic Matters
	Nov Traffic Services Requests

	4 South Central Area Matters
	Extinguishment of Borris Ct
	Halloween Report
	Christmas trees
	NOV Gully Cleaning Report

	5 Community, Culture, Economic and Emergency Services
	Sports Report

	6 Planning and Economic Development Matters
	10 November Questions to Area Manager

